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Report of the PRC Auditors

De Shi Jing (Shen) Bao Zi (03) No. 265
Tothe shareholdersof Northeast Electric Development Company Limited:

We are engaged to audit the accompanying balance sheet of Northeast
Electric Development Company Limited (“the Company”) and the
consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) as of December 31, 2002 and the related statements of profit and
profit appropriation and cash flows of the Company and the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Independent Auditing Standards
for Chinese Certified Public Accountants. Our audit included such tests
of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures, as we
considered necessary in the practical circumstances of the Company
except that our audit scope is limited as below.

The scope of our audit was limited in respect of the Group’s former
subsidiary, Shenyang Transformers Ltd. (“Shenyang”), which was
disposed of during the year. The loss incurred by Shenyang during the
period from January 1, 2002 up to the date of disposal (“loss incurred by
Shenyang for the period”) was RMB9,882,150.53 which was included in
the consolidated income statement based on unaudited management
accounts. As disclosed in Note 54 (1), the gain on disposal of Shenyang is
calculated based on the sales proceeds less the net asset value of Shenyang
at December 31, 2001 and the loss incurred by Shenyang for the period.
Accordingly, for the purpose of our audit, we were unable to conclude as
to whether the loss incurred by Shenyang for the period and also the
related gain on disposal of Shenyang amounting to RMB47,495,680.59
were free from material misstatement. In addition, other financial
information of Shenyang for the period from January 1, 2002 up to the
date of disposal required for the preparation of the consolidated cash
flow statement and the notes to the financial statements are not available.
The related assets and liabilities at December 31, 2001 were used to
prepare the relevant disclosures included in the notes to the financial
report and the consolidated cash flow statement. Accordingly, for the
purpose of our audit, we were unable to conclude as to whether the
movements disclosed in the consolidated cash flow statement and the net
cash inflow from the disposal of Shenyang amounting to
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Report of the PRC Auditors (Continued)
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Northeast Electric

RMB44,691,436.01 were free from material misstatement. Any
adjustment to these figures would affect the classification of the
consolidated income statement, the movements disclosed in the
consolidated cash flow statement and the net cash inflow from disposal
of Shenyang stated in Note 54 (1).

We are of the opinion that, except for the potential consequences arising
from the above factors, this financial report of the Company was prepared
in compliance with the relevant requirements of Enterprise Accounting
Principles (1= % & 5t # 8)) and Enterprise Accounting System (& ¥ &
stHIEE) and, in all material respects, fairly reflects the financial position
of the Company and the Group as at December 31, 2002 and operating
results and cash flows of the Company and the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The accounting method adopted for this year was
consistent with the prior year’s.

As stated in Note 54 (1), the Company transferred 100% of its interest in
Shenyang to Northeast Construction & Installation Company. According
to the agreement entered into by the Company, Northeast Construction &
Installation Company and Shenyang National Industrial Assets
Management Company, RMB150 million of transfer price was paid by
Shenyang National Industrial Assets Management Company on behalf of
Northeast Construction & Installation Company. After completion of this
transfer, Shenyang National Industrial Assets Management Company will
be the shareholder of Shenyang.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants Ltd.
Chinese Certified Public Accountant

Cui Jin
Huang Jinsheng
April 14, 2003

Development Company Limited



%A KR
Balance Sheet

B : AE#¥ 7 Unit: RMB

Mzt AHEFE AHENE  LFEXR  LFENR
RE Assets Notes Closing Opening Closing Opening
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS:
EBESe Cash and bank balances 7 8830570469  314,473122.66  11,819,298.61  72,226,746.46
EWEE Notes receivable 8 1,377,666.80 1,172,538.56 = =
JE W iR 4 Accounts receivable 9°11  461,377,68454  879,024,651.96  34,970,450.00 =
HLfth P W3k Other receivables 10~ 11 199383379.60  479,558,184.63  124,884,045.15  282,688,906.14
AR Advances to suppliers 12 29,060,382.21  302,074,666.82 — =
FE Inventories 13 220,227,6209  378254629.79  27,878,800.00 =
HHER Deferred expenses 14 8,601,709.00 2,211,090.82 = =
RBEERT Total current assets 1,008,334,156.80  2,356,768,885.24  199,552,593.76  354,915,652.60
REARE: LONG TERM INVESTMENTS:
RERERE Long term equity investments 15 80,699,648.28 1741874146 394,332915.68  398,773,416.27
REEERE Long term debenture investment 16 1,900.00 1,160,207.00 — =
RERES Total long term investments 80,701,548.28  18,578,948.46 394,332915.68  398,773,416.27
EEEE: FIXED ASSETS:
TEERE Fixed assets - at cost 17 117754631641 210439927076 2,138,621.00  2,078,771.00
B BiHE Less: Accumulated depreciation 17 342,903,037.46  761,926548.02  1,084,531.00 911,517.00
EEERE Fixed assets - net book value 834,643,278.95 134247272274  1,054,090.00  1,167,254.00
B ETEE Less: Provision for impairment
HEEfE on fixed assets 17 8427711952  154,382,891.10 - —
EEERH Fixed assets - net of provision 17 750,366,150.43 1,188,089,831.64 = =
EEIR Construction in progress 18 11,968,460.37  151,753,788.30 = =
CEEA Total fixed assets 762,334,619.80 1339,843,619.94 105409000  1,167,254.00
BYEERETEE : INTANGIBLE AND OTHER ASSETS:
B EE Intangible assets 19 50,647,323.48  147,303,665.32 — =
REGHER Long term deferred expenditure 20 986,315.56 6,856,913.78 235,000.00 264,999.99
BNEERICEESTotd intangible and other assets 60,633,639.04  154,160,579.10 235,000.00 264,999.99
BEEH TOTAL ASSETS 1,912,003,963.92 3869,352,032.74  595,174599.44  755,121,322.86
MY &E & S 5t R M9 A B2 The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.
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Balance Sheet (Continued)

ZEECFEF A= HER (b B e e R R R )
As at 31 December 2002 (Prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Rules and Regulations)

Ef : A\RBT
Mzt AHEXHE AHENE  LFEXE  LARENR
LIABILITIESAND

RERBRER OWNERS' EQUITY Notes Closing Opening Closing Opening
RBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES:
BHER Short term loans 21 43448694509 1,276,703,040.04 —  67,900,000.00
EARE Notes payable 2 14,000,000.00  32,650,000.00 = =
FEfT iR 3 Accounts payable 23 34152588925  757,507,300.28 120,000.00 =
LT Advances from customers 24 106,846530.61  247,407,532.43 751,000.00 —
EFIE Wages payable 1,964,067.38 = = =
EAEAE Welfare payable 609,920.08  12,285,328.20 = =
EfRA Dividends payable 25 903,606.44 4,195,243.94 = =
ExHe Taxes payable 2 11,362,429.13  (4,868445.73)  2243177.98  2,158,000.00
A ERH Other payables 2 7,835,188.92 8,010,350.93 = =
Hitt MR Other creditors 2 92,858730.37  316,278,867.29 5312399439  3,614,208.48
BREA Accrued expenses 29 6,742,626.17 7,037,31008 351850000  2,000,000.00
- ERHHORBER Current portion of long term loans 30 170,410,000.00  498,258,879.02 —  361,148,879.02
RBEEET Total current liabilities 1,189,545,942.44 315546540648  59,756,672.37  436,821,087.50
RHE&E: LONG TERM LIABILITIES:
RAEH Long term loans 31 168,606,711.01  357,408,951.01 = =
EEEMNR Specific payable 2 1324095532 23,381,559.65 = —
RHafss Total long term liabilities 181,847,666.33  380,790,510.66 = —
BEAH Total liabilities 1,371,393,608.77 3536,255,917.14  59,756,672.37  436,821,087.50
DEBRFERER Minority interest 519242808  14,795:880.24 = —
L S OWNERS EQUITY:
BERER (RE) Paid-up capital (shares) 33 873370,000.00  873:370,000.00 873,370,000.00  873,370,000.00
ERNE Capital surplus 34 762,890,20993 61477493023  762,890,209.93  614,774,930.23
BRAE Surplus reserve fund 35 108,587,124.40 10858712440 10858712440  108,587,124.40
Hh ZEAHS Including: Statutory surplus

reserve fund 35 3221080310  32,210,803.10  32,210,803.10  32,210,803.10
RABFE Undistributed losses 36 (1,209,429,407.26) (1,278431,819.27)(1,209,429,407.26) (1,278,431,819.27)
BRRER G Total owners — equity 535417,927.07  318,300,235.36  535417,927.07  318,300,235.36
BERRFEEA5  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

OWNERS EQUITY 1,912,003,963.92 3,869,352,032.74  595,174,599.44  755,121,322.86
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Profit and Profit Appropriation Nee

L B4H
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
L] Items MdE  FERHB LEZHE FERMNY LEZHE
- FEEENA 1. Revenues from principal operations 3 95145445116 1.281,941691.27 42,482,606.87 =
W EEEBARK Less: Costs from principal operations 38 63717426619 1,098,367,081.37 29492,824.80 =
TEERHRS Tax and additions from
R M principal operations 3 7,088,339.61 6,865,144.78 17,500.00 -
= REREAE 2. Profits from principal operations
(BFBUI—I5%E) 307,191,845.16 176,709,465.12 12,972,282.07 -
Ui Add:  Other operating profits
(BEAT-IERT) 40 397842874 16,452,231.69 - -
B EXER Less: Operating expense 87,585,496.37 166,299,540.95 = =
ERER Administraiive expense 17466420648 557,673,913.48 14,480,226.63 129,659,328.21
HBER Financial expense 4 6628724536 139,132,423.20 354,293.94 33,185,552.55
= XA 3. Operating income (loss)
(BEAI-IERT) 13633,325.60  (669,944,180.82) (1862,238.50)  (162,844,880.76)
m: REhWE Add:  Investment income (loss)
(BAUT—J%ET) 4 64,383,635.93 333429.44 7086465051  (655,799,381.64)
N Subsidy income 4 480,016.03 3730,000.00 = =
=ES 0N Non-operafing income 4 196575436 1,142216.28 = -
W OEEML Less: Non-operating expense 45 2,234744.92 161,140,119.90 = -
M FEaE 4, Total profit (loss)
(BEUT—I%%T) 7822798709 (825,878,655.00) 6900241200 (818,644,262.40)
W OFEHR Less:  Income tax 4 5,370,721.74 (1,806,562.86) = =
SHRRER Minority interest
(BEAT-IERT) 3,854,853.34 (5,427,820.74) - -
I FHE 5. Net profit (loss)
(FEBUI—I5%ES) 6900241201  (818,644,262.40) 6900241200  (818,644,262.40)
m: BRRIEFE Add:  Opening undistributed losses (1278431,819.27)  (459,787,556.87)  (1,278431,819.27)  (459,767,556.67)
R AR 6. Losses available for distribution
(FEBAT—I5ES ) (1209.420407.26)  (1,278,431,819.27)  (1,200429.407.26)  (1,278,431,819.27)
B RREAEBRHLE Less Transfer to statutory surplus reserve = - - -
REEEARE Trangfer to statutory public
welfare fund — = = =
T TRREIENFE 7. Losses available for distribution
(FEBAT—I5ES ) to shareholders (1209.420407.26)  (1,278,431,819.27)  (1,200429.407.26)  (1,278,431,819.27)
W ERBERRA Less: Dividend payable for preferred shares = - - -
RRASEBLR Transfer to discretionary surplus reserve = = = =
EREBRRA Dividend payable for ordinary shares — - - -
BERAHEBRRA Dividend for ordinary shares
converted into capital — — — -
N RABHE 8. Undistributed losses
(FEBAT—I%ES ) (1209.420407.26)  (1,278,431,819.27)  (1,209429.407.26)  (1,278,431,819.27)
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Profit and Profit Appropriation (Continued)

SERRZEF IS HEE (b B g e W K )
As at 31 December 2002 (Prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Rules and Regulations)

#WFEEH : Supplementary information:

&t B AT
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
= Item FERMB FERFE FERHB TERTH
HE EEWRE Gain on disposals
B AERE of subsidiaries 60,135,842.13 — 60,135,842.13 -
MEASHRRNWART D The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.

Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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Cash Flow Statement
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By : AR% 7 Unit: RMB
Hak AHEEN B LEY NEEER ARLEY
5B [tems Notes Closing Opening Closing Opening
V BETFHEEHRETRE 1 Cash flows from operating activities:
HEWR  RUEAEK Cash received from sales of
ek goods or rendering of services 868784,764.65  1,543618,719.61  10,410,324.85 =
WHHRHERE Refund of tax = 557,935.00 = =
WEMEMRLEED Other cash received relating
FENRE to operating activities 112,919,044.08 2843825880  56,550,861.03  3,665,331.49
BERADG Sub-total of cash inflows 981,703,808.72  1572,614,91341  66,91,185.88  3,665,331.49
BEBR BEIEBXA Cash paid for goods
MRS and services (553317,651.16)  (980,660,866.73) (7,762,219.80) —
IHERINARART Cash paid to and on behalf
TANRE of employees (102,896,958.21)  (217,843,890.05)  (1,557,333.06) =
TANBERE Taxes paid other than value
added tax and income tax (56,034,685.51)  (40,841,767.05) (1,025.00) —
TMEMELEED Other cash paid relating
EBENRS to operating activities (175276,410.97)  (159,666,103.71)  (2,492,028.01) (8,167,357.49)
BEML N Sub-total of cash outflows (887,525,705.84) (1,399,012,627.54) (11,812,605.87)  (8,167,357.49)
BETHELNRETEFE  Net cash flows from
operating activities 94,178,102.88 173,602,285.87  55,148,580.01  (4,502,026.00)
2 REZHEANBERE 2 Cashflows from investing activities
WEREmRENE S Proceeds from sales of
long term investments 3,344,863.00 9,740.00 - -
RETLANENES Cash received from disposal
of subsidiaries 54 61,658,502.28 — 168,000,000.00 -
RERERFFMUEMNES  Cash received from
long term investments 65,094.88 111,700.40 — -
REETEE  EFEEN  Net cash received from disposa
Bt RHEERMEN of fixed assets, intangible assets
BeRE and other long term assets 545,649.23 349,800.00 = =
WENEMERERD Cash received from other
BENES investing activities = 786,384.94 = —
BERADG Sub-total of cash inflows 65,614,109.39 1,257,625.34  168,000,000.00 —
BEEEEE  BFEEN  Cash pad to acquire
AURBEEMIANRS  fixed assels, intangible assets
and other long term assets (18544686.86)  (79,081,58389)  (59,850.00) (3,600.00)
REFZANRS Cash paid to acquire equity
investments == = — (2,500,000.00)
IMEMEREED Cash paid for other
BENRE investing activities — (3,200.00) — —
BEML Sub-total of cash outflows (18,544,686.86)  (79,084,783.89)  (59,850.00)  (2,503,600.00)
RETHEENELREFE  Net cash flows from
investing activities 47,069,422.53 (77,827,158.55) 167,940,150.00  (2,503,600.00)
W At C £ % J& JBe By # Fi 2 Gl
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Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

WE-ZLZHF+ =+~ HILFE (e B a8 A B A )

Year ended December 2002 (Prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Rules and Regulations)

B : AR¥T Unit: RMB

Wi AHEEH 2fLEE  AFFEN  DALEY
HA Items Notes Closing Opening Closing Opening
= BERHEAN 3. Cash flows from financing activities
BERE .
REREFRKENES Cash received from equity investments = 152,000.00 = =
REERMUENES Proceeds from horrowings 518,640,000.00  1553,174,350.16 —  234,130,000.00
WENHMEEEED Other proceeds relating to
BENRS financing activities 21,691.94 42,108,123.97 —  8542927.99
RERAN Sub-total of cash inflows 518,661,691.94 159543447413 —  242,672927.99
BREEFZANRS Cash repayments of amounts borrowed ~ (832,868,678.83)  (1,655,211,200.00) (283,305,623.92) (330,580,000.00)
AEEH - MERNES Dividends paid or cash payments
FEFRXMHES relating to appropriation of profit (53,205,117.49)  (120,196,455.46)  (190,553.94) (10,971,79151)
EMEMEEEED Cash paid to other financing
BANRS activities (2,839.00) (145,717.26) = =
BERL N Sub-total of cash outflows (886,076,635.32) (1,775,553,372.72) (283,496,177.86) (341,551,791.51)
EETHELNTSREFH  Net cash flows from financing activities  (367,414,943.38)  (180,118,898.59) (283,496,177.86) (98,878,863.52)
M EXZBHRENTE 4, Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes on cash - (194,499.75) - (194,499.75)
T BERBEEENFHLE 5 Net decreasesin cash and
cash equivalents (226,167,417.97)  (84538,271.02) (60,407,447.85) (106,078,989.27)

Northeast Electric Development

Company Limited
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Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

B : AE#¥7 Unit: RMB

MzE  AHFER B LEE  AFFER  AFLEY
wRER Supplementary information Notes Closing Opening Closing Opening
BEFBAHALE 1 Reconciliation of net profit (loss) to
EHNRERE cash flows from operating activities:
BB Net profit (loss) 69,002,412.01  (818,644262.40) 69,002,412.01 (818,644,262.40)
m: YERRES Add: Minority interest
(BB [— 5 E50) 3,854,853.34 (5,427,829.74) = =
TRNEEAERER Provision for diminution in value 1712443069 41545080558 (52,787,673.90) 118,567,703.22
BEBENE Depreciation of fixed assets 40,271,522.01 77849,253.09 17301400  146,844.00
BYEEEH Amortization of intangibles assets 3480,795.11 3459,741.31 = =
RAGHEREH Decrease in long term deferred expenses 2,355,925.77 4,892,073.74 29,999.99  1,486,868.86
HHERES (AL M) Decrease (increase) in deferred expenses (6,087,921.50) 549,850.07 = =
BREREM (HHD) Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 3,072,908.83 (5,155431.04)  1,518500.00  (3,651,730.00)
REETEE  &F Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets,
EENEMRHEE intangible assets and other
HEX (AkE) long term assets (387,014.16) 1,324,366.59 = =
CEEREERX Fixed assets written off 14,106 51 - = =
BEER Financial expenses 5045641165 12563579885 40457854  18,557,618.58
REBX (HKE) (Gain) loss arising from investments (54330,068.66)  14504,114.84 (70,864,650.51) 670,636,925.92
FEWMES (REm) Increase in inventories (54,498.805.67)  (114,986,593.36) (27,878,800.00) =
BEnRYER MY Decrease (increase) in
(Rl ) operating receivables 110,189,180.75  224:822,686.31 11226272991  (944,280.23)
BEHEMERMEN (Decrease) increase in
(R 2) operating payables (90,340,642.80)  234,220,954.58  23,288.469.97 331441315
Efh Others = 15,106,757.45 —  6,027,87290
RETBHEEN Net cash flows from
RemERH operating activities 9417810288  173,602,285.87  55,148580.01  (4,502,026.00)
BeRALEEY 2. Net decrease in cash and
FEMER cash equivalents:
EBESNERBE Cash and balance balances
a the end of the year 88,305,70469 31447312266 11,819,298.61  72,226,746.46
W EMESN Less: Cash and bank balance
EN8RE a the beginning of the year 31447312266  399,011,393.68  72,226,746.46 178,305,735.73
BeRALEEY Net decrease in cash and
FHOH cash equivalents (226,167,417.97)  (84538,271.02) (60,407,447.85) (106,078,989.27)
WEASHBRMARSS The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.
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COMPANY HIGHLIGHTS

Northeast Electric Development Company Limited (formerly
known as Northeast Electrical Transmission & Transformation
Machinery Manufacturing Company Limited)(the “Company”) is
ajoint stock limited company established through fixed capital
raising with the approval of the Shenyang Enterprise System
Reform Commission (Shen Ti Gai Fa (1992) No. 81) and with
Northeast Electrical Transmission & Transformation Equipment
Group Corporation being the lead promoter. The Company was
established on February 18, 1993. The initial total share capital
was 824,454,000 shares, which was adjusted to 585,420,000 shares
in 1995. The Company issued 257,950,000 H shares in Hong Kong
and the shares commenced trading on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on July 6, 1995. In the same year, the Company
issued 30,000,000 A shares in Shenzhen and the shares commenced
trading on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on December 13, 1995.
At present, the total share capital of the Company is 873,370,000
shares. Details of classifications of shares and the amounts are set
out in Note 33.

On February 25, 2002, 230,000,000 Stated-owned legal person
shares of the Company held by NET were auctioned and acquired
by Shenyang Shengang Industrial Company Limited (nwo renamed
as “ Shenyang Northeast-Electrical Holding Company”). At the end
of the reporting year, Shenyang Northeast-Electrical Holding
Company held 230,000,000 shares (26.34% of the total share
capital) of the Company and has become the single largest
shareholder of the Company. Details are set out in Note 33.4.

The name of the Company was changed from Northeast Electrical
Transmission & Transformation Machinery Manufacturing
Company Limited to Northeast Electric Development Company
Limited with the approval from the Ministry of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation, PRC on September 14, 2002.

The principal operations of the Company are the manufacturing of
transmission and transformation machinery and the provision of

relevant services.

As at December 31, 2002, the subsidiaries and their principal
activities are as set out in note 6.

Company Limited



&

NTEE2002F 128310 1k - BEE
BENCEINMET  RBERES
e EEBRBEEST S EE
181218t °c ARIRAFEARALHET £
ZEBRREGEBREREEAR
TRABMEEBREREH T RAEH
THERRBERREAR - AREFTRR
B B AR R S E 0 1T 8 o RRS L3R
E0 BEHNEDREREHRERD
MBBARBIIERET  HEEX
15008t Bt EBER AN TEH
RTEHRERENE  AUERKIE

BECEEHERS -

FERAHBE - FHHHTSH#
EHEROERNEE

BHHE
HAT(REE L) A(EESEH
E)YREBRRTE -

BHEE

S EEARAELIRALIAE12A31H
1E o

i R 7 fir
ARBUARERTHRALE -
RERERMEARERA

ARBEHAREUEERERBTIR
it LEERABTERA o

It £ R #*

& ak Wk W (8

Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

As at December 31, 2002, the Company has incurred losses
amounting to RMB1,209,429,407.26, while the amount of current
liabilities is larger than that of current assets by
RMB181,211,785.64. During the year, the Company disposed of
Shenyang Transformers Limited, which was the major source of
losses. In addition, the Company has taken an active role to control
the production and operating costs, which has turned the Company
from loss to profit. It is expected that the financial position improve
in the foreseeable future. Besides, the expired short term loans
worth more than RMB115,330,000.00 were extended and new
additional loans raised amounting to RMB15,000,000 by the
reporting date. The management of the Company anticipated that
there will be no repayment difficulties in the near term, therefore
the financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESAND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION

Accounting regulations

In accordance with the Accounting Standards for Enterprises and
Accounting Regulations for Enterprises and their supplementary
provisions.

Accounting year

The accounting year is from January 1 to December 31.

Reporting currency
The Group uses the Renminbi (“RMB”) as its reporting currency.
Principal of book-keeping and valuation

The Group adopts the accrual basis of accounting and all assets are
stated at their historical costs of acquisition.
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

FERHBE - FEaIE
EREROEBNAE (F)

NEREBRAFE

DR BENIIEEEELE  BEBR
AERRAFEARRTAMNTE
EENTEECATHEmEEE]
TERARMTIR - MERSHER
HNECBEARTEEEBMERAR
HEH IMBEABRERETRREE
BB AERIRN  HERGHA
ENNMBER -

EHEHERNEH S
(1) EHEERERA

EHE BRSO THEL2A
SIAELEARIRHEMBEANTE
FARANEFHRE - FLAR
ENRBAREESBEREH
50% FEREERNERE
¥ ARARBBEME E
HHEE EEENERIEFH
BREDE -

RFRUFFEHENTARAE
BEBRERETQCANGS
BEWEHEE 2R
54(1) °

(2 XAWMEAZE

FRRARANEESHERER
RABR-RENS T HEETE -

FTRAEHERAMNELRRE
BERBEAAHRBERSD -

LNARFAARFARAMEERZ
BHAEERNRERRZER
BOTEE o

Electric

Development

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Renminbi at
exchange rates stipulated by the People’s Bank of China prevailing
at the mid-rate of the first day of that month (“market rate”). The
foreign currency balances of foreign currency accounts at the end
of the year are translated into Renminbi at the market rate at the
end of year. Exchange gains or losses are included in financial
expenses for the current year except for gains or losses arising
from construction of assets which are taken to construction-in-
progress.

Basis of preparation for consolidation
(1) Recognition principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its domestic and
overseas subsidiaries made up to December 31, 2002.
Subsidiaries are enterprises in which the Company directly
or indirectly holds more than 50% of the equity capital or
has power to exercise control over operating activities
through other methods.

Details of the consolidation in respect of the disposal of
Shenyang Transformers Ltd., the Company’s former
subsidiary, are set out in Note 54 (1).

(2)  Accounting policies adopted

The principal accounting policies adopted by the
subsidiaries are consistent with that of the Company.

The operating results of subsidiaries prior to disposal are
included in the consolidated profit and profit appropriation.

All intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated
on consolidation.

Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued) Nee

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term (generally due within 3 months
from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to
an insignificant risk of changesin value.

Method of recognition of bad debts

(1) Basisof recognition of bad debts
A debtor is bankrupt and liquidated in accordance with legal
procedures. The related account receivable is confirmed as
unrecoverable thereafter.
A debtor is dead and there is insufficient estate for
repayment and no obligatory guarantor. The related account

receivable is confirmed as unrecoverable.

A debtor does not make repayment as agreed and there is
obvious indication that the related account receivable is

unrecoverable.
Ji& J fy A PR 2 )
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Method of recognition of bad debts (continued)

)

Method for recognition of bad debts

Provision for bad debts is calculated by the allowance
method in accordance with the recoverability from the
receivable at the end of the year. Provision for bad debtsis
reasonably estimated based on the Company’s past
experience, the financial position and cash flows of the
debtors together with other relevant information. The
Company first considered the recoverability of the
individual receivables with significant amounts due and then
used aging analysis as a basis to calculate the provision
required for the remaining balance.

The general provision for trade debtors and other receivables
was calculated as follows:

Age Percentage
Within 1 year —
1to 2 years —
2to 3 years 40%
3to 4 years 60%
Over 4 years 100%

The Company made full provision for receivables which cannot be
recovered based on clear evidence.

Development

Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at actual cost at acquisition. Actual cost
includes material purchase costs, subcontracting cost and other
costs incurred to transport the inventories to the place of storage
and any costs incurred for usage. The inventories include raw

materials, work-in-progress and finished goods.

The cost of inventories sold is calculated on a weighted average
basis. Consumables are charged to the profit and loss account when
they are requisitioned. Packaging materials for production is

directly recognized into costs and expenses.

A perpetual stock system is adopted for the calculation of stock

volume.

Provision for diminution in value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
The provision is made at the amount equal to the shortfall of cost
over the net realizable value of an inventory. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price less all further costs to

completion and costs to be incurred in selling during the normal
course of business operation.

Recognition of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount represents the higher of the net proceeds
from the sale of an asset and the net present value of expected
future cash flows arising from the holding and the disposal of the

asset at the end of its useful life.
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Accounting Long term investments

(1)

Development

Valuation and revenue recognition for long term equity
investments:

Long term equity investments are stated at cost of
acquisition.

If the Company is not able to control the investee enterprise,
by itself or jointly with other parties or not able to exert
significant influence, the long term equity investment is
accounted for using the cost method. If the Company is able
to control the investee enterprise, by itself or jointly with
other parties, or able to exert significant influence, the long
term equity investment is accounted for using the equity
method.

When the cost method is adopted, the amount of investment
income recognized by the investor is limited to the amount
received from the accumulated net profits which arise from
the investee enterprise after the investment has been made.
The amount of profits or cash dividends declared to be
distributed by the investee enterprise in excess of the above
threshold is treated as recovery of investment cost, and
reduces the carrying amount of the investment accordingly.

When the equity method is adopted, the amount of
investment income for the current year represents the share
of the results of the investee enterprise for the year.

When the equity method is adopted for calculating the long-
term equity investment, the difference between the initial
investment cost and share of owner’s equity of the invested
is classified as the difference on the investment cost, which
is amortized over the period of the investment or if the
contract has no specified investment period, the investment
is amortized over a period of 10 years.

Company Limited
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otes to the Accounts (Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Accounting Long term investments (continued)

(2) Valuation and revenue recognition for long term investment
in debt

A long-term debt investment is recorded at its actual cost on
acquisition as the initial investment cost. The difference
between the initial investment cost of a long-term bond
investment (as reduced by any bond interest due but unpaid,
accrued bond interest and any related expenses included
therein) and the par value of the bond is treated as an
investment premium or discount.

Interest income on long term debt investments is calcul ated
according to the par value and coupon date. The premium or
discount is amortized using the straight-line method over
the period of the investment.

(3) Provision for diminution in value of investment

At the end of year, the Company will consider whether there
is any indication for impairment to determine the necessity
to make a provision for diminution in value. When the
recoverable amount is below the book value of the long-
term investment, the difference will be recognized as a
provision for diminution in value.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets represent physcal assets for production, provision of
services, rent, operations and other non-operating activities with a
useful life of over one year and significant value .

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost at acquisition. Depreciation
is provided to write off the cost of fixed assets over their estimated
useful lives from the month after they usinare put into operation
using the straight-line method. The estimated residue value is 3%
of cost. The estimated useful lives and depreciation rates of each
class of the fixed assets are as follows:

Type of Estimated Annual
fixed assets useful life  depreciation rate
Buildings 20 - 50 years 1.94% - 4.85%

Machinery and equipment 8- 20 years 4.85% - 12.13%
Motor vehicles and others 6 - 17 years 5.71% - 16.17%

Provision for diminution in value of fixed assets

At the end of the year, the Company will consider whether thereis
any indication of impairment to determine the necessity to make a
provision for diminution in value. When the recoverable amount is
below the book value, the difference will be recognized as a
provision for diminution in value.

Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is stated at the actual cost incurred for

construction.

The cost of construction includes all the costs incurred for the
construction during the construction period and borrowing costs of
specific loans directly related to the construction, which are
eligible to be capitalized before the construction reaches the
planned usable status and other relevant expenses attributable to
such projects. The cost of construction in progress will be
transferred to fixed assets when the construction in progress is
capable of being put in use as planned. No depreciation is provided

for construction in progress.

Provision for diminution in value of construction in progress is
made when construction has been suspended for a long period of
time and the works will not be recommenced within three years;
the project is obsolete either in its physical condition or technology
and there is uncertainty about its economic benefit to the
enterprise; or other evidence indicates that there is diminution in

value.

Financial expenses

Financial expenses include interest arising from loans,
amortization of discounts or premiums, other expenses and
exchange gains or losses arising from specific borrowings.
Financial expenses arising from the acquisition of a fixed asset are

capitalized before the asset is ready for its intended use. Financial
expenses, other than the above, are expensed when incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition;

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives
and recognized as again or loss for the year.

At the end of the year, the Company will consider whether thereis
any indication of impairment to determine the necessity to make a
provision for diminution in value. When the recoverable amount is
below the book value, the difference will be recognized as a
provision for diminution in value.

Long term deferred expenses

Long term deferred expenses are stated at actual cost incurred and
are amortized over their useful lives on a straight-line basis.

Specific payable

Specific payable is recognized when the receipt of specific
government funds for specific purposes is confirmed. When the
project is completed, any fixed assets formed are transferred to
capital reserves at cost. The portion without fixed assets formed is
written off when approved.

Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods and sales income are recognized at the time when
the substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the goods has
been passed to the buyer and the Company no longer manages or
physically controls the goods. When the economic benefit related
to the sales has flowed into the Company and the related sales can

be reliably matched to the cost incurred, revenue is recognized.

When the provision of servicesis started and completed within the
same accounting period, revenue is recognized at the time of
completion of the services. When the provision of services is
started and completed in different periods, revenue is recognized
based on the percentage of service completion, where the result of
the service contract can be reliably estimated. Otherwise, revenue
is recognized based on the actual and expected compensation from
the sevice contract and recognized the actual cost incurred for the
year. Cost incurred previously and the compensation expected not

recoverable should not be recognized as income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Income tax

Income tax is accounted for using the tax liability method.
Debt restructuring

Company as a debtor

When the cash settlement of debt is below the book value, the
difference between the cash settlement and book value is
recognized as capital reserve.

Company as a creditor

When the debt is settled using a form other than cash, the book
value of the debt after restructuring is recorded.

CORRECTION OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ERROR

In the current year, we discovered a significant accounting error
made previously and have made corrections. The accounting error,
the corrections made and their impact on the financial position are
as follows:

Interest income from the deposit placed with
Liaoning Trust

In the previous year, the Company accrued interest income
amounting to RMB14,837,544.28 arising from the deposit of
USD20 million placed in Liaoning Trust and Investment Company
(“Liaoning Trust™). Since Liaoning Trust was liquidated in October
2001, the Company reclassified the deposit as other accounts
receivable from bank deposits and the corresponding interest
income arising from the deposit was not accrued. The opening
balances of other accounts receivable in respect of the accrued
interest income and the financial expenses for the previous year
were adjusted downward by RMB14,837,544.28.

Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

TAXATION

Valued added tax

Valued added tax is calculated on 17% on revenue from principal
operations and paid after deducting input VAT on purchases.

Sales tax

Salestax is caculated at 5-20% of income from provision of services.

Urban maintenance and construction tax

Urban maintenance and construction tax is calculated at 7% of
value added tax and sales tax.

Education additional tax

Education additional tax is calculated at 4% of value added tax and
sales tax.

Income tax

Income tax is calculated at 33% of assessable profits.
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

6. ERFLF

ARAEERBETLEANEABRY

6. CONTROLLING SUBSIDIARES

All of the subsidiaries owned by the Company are as follows:

T
LAFREER FEERT 20015
FoRER BEREF FiGRGLEA EZEE at REEH
Amount of
investment and share Consolidated Consolidated
Name of subsidiaries Registered capital of equity interest Operational activities in 2002 in 2001
ARBET ARBET
(RMB'0,000) (RMB’0,000)
ERSERBEAR 14,492 14492 BERE - BRRR = =
EEDQA 100% #ERHFAE
Shenyang High-voltage Manufacture of switchgears, Yes Yes
Switchgears Ltd. circuit breakers and disconnectors
BHENEREER 2,942 2942 HERBEEREARR = =
EEDA 100%
Jinzhou Power Manufacture of lightening Yes Yes
Capacitors Ltd. rods and capacitors
ENHASRER 1,809 1809 HEHEABR = =
LN 100%
Fuxin Enclosed Busbars Ltd. Manufacture of Yes Yes
enclosed busbars
&G & s 15,000 15000 =% ERKRH = =
BRAF 100%
Kingdom Hotel Provision of hotel and Yes Yes
Ltd. , Shenyang catering services
BREEEHRRY 2,520 1512 RERERH & =
BRAF 60%
Shenyang Hua Kang Provision of No Yes
Restaurant & entertainment services
Entertainment Ltd.
BHRRERER 300 15375 HERASEERH = =
LN 51.25%
Jinzhou Jinrong Electrical Manufacture of rod-type Yes Yes
Equipment Co., Ltd voltage capacitors
ERLSERESE 389 3997 EEEMNRAERE = =
BEEBERAA 97.68% Z%EHREER
Shenyang Shengao Metal Provision of anti-corrosive  Yes Yes
Antisepsis Ltd. processing services of
metallic accessories
Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

CONTROLLING SUBSIDIARES (continued)

ATREER FEERS 20014F
FoRRE EREF FiEEELLE BEHE &t REEH
Amount of
investment and share Consolidated Consolidated
Name of subsidiaries Registered capital of equity interest Operational activities in 2002 in 2001
AR®ETT ARBETT
(RMB’0,000) (RMB’0,000)
EREERERER 32,056.5 32,0565 HELER & =
NG| 100%
Shenyang Transformers Manufacture of transformers  No Yes
Ltd.
EELSEREHE 12,000 11352 HEERHR & =
BRAF 94.60%
Shenyang Shenbian ITU Manufacture of transformers No Yes
Manufacturing Ltd. (ITU)
BELEREER 1,000 800 WEERBREM B =
BREFEAA 80%
Shenyang Shenbian Manufacture of transformers  No Yes
Special Electric and transmission equipment
Equipment Ltd. and accessories
BELEPREER 2,000 1700 REREZER B =
BREFEAA 85%
Shenyang Shenbian Manufacture of transformers  No Yes
Middle Transformer Ltd. and reactors
BHELEEIRE 700 616 EIXRHE ERIER & =
BREELH 88%
Shenyang Shenbian Manufacture of transformers  No Yes
Electrican Equipment Ltd. and transmission equipment
and specialized tools
EELEHE 700 630 HE - BHRE - & =
ERERALR 90% I PR
Shenyang Shenbian Manufacture of Switchgears No Yes
Switchgears Ltd and provision of processing
services
=] 4 G ) #® i e By A i 2 ]
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

BETFLR (&)

EHBREEZEARRER :

HRARERAF RO RFENES
EREEREFLAMUTEREINL
2 1)100%REMBEGERERIREES
REEAT ATEBERE])60%H
BREEZARLERZEIRED
A FHI2001F &R R EE P EDE
MTERTEBFARUREERE X8
EEFREHEEEBRRNEHEE
ZR-BREBREFARURERR
002F 1A IR EREHEANKEEE
BOEEINRRAFESHFIERF
HomERZA °

2 ME7T—4TR49—-56BE HE R
KR MiEeEARSHRER

CONTROLLING SUBSIDIARES (continued)

Changes in content from last year’s consolidated financial report
and reasons:

On June 4, 2002, the Company disposed of its 100% equity interest
in Shenyang Transformers Ltd (“Shenyang”) and 60% equity
interest in Shenyang Hua Kang Restaurant & Entertainment
Co.Ltd. (“Hua Kang") to Northeast Construction & Installation
Corporation. Therefore the accounts of Shenyang and its
subsidiaries and Hua Kang were not included in the Group
consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2002, whereas they
had been included as at December 31, 2001. However, the
operating losses arising from Shenyang and its subsidiaries and
Hua Kang from January 1, 2002 to the date of disposal were
included in the statement of profit and profit appropriation.

Note: Notes 7 to 47 and 49 to 56 are notes to the accounts related to the
Group while note 48 is related to the Company.

*-g o
RE&ES CASH AND BANK BALANCES
X8 L)L
Closing Opening
EE L hEE ARRT NEEE hE= ARBT
Foreign  Exchange Foreign ~ Exchange
currency rate RMB currency rate RMB
"e Cash
AR RMB 272,681.73 325,467.15
E usb 2,864.34 8.2773 23,709.00 6,962.34 8.2766 57,624.50
ROER Bank deposit
ARE RMB 70,935,341.88 207,186,517.25
E usb 126.28 8.2773 1,045.27  8,657,954.23 8.2766 71,658,423.98
ik HKD 17,382.53 1.0610 18,442.86 18,554.53 1.0606 19,678.93
HtE®ES Other deposit
ARK RMB 17,054,483.95 35,225,410.85
88,305,704.69 314,473,122.66

FREMERESAFAERES
RARE °

Electric

Development

Other deposit represents the letter of guarantee and |etter of credit
deposit as at the end of the year.

Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

8. EWRE 8. NOTESRECEIVABLE
FXB FANH
Closing Opening
AR# AR
Rmb Rmb
BEALER Commercial notes receivable 300,000.00 160,371.00
RITEGLESR Bank notes receivable 1,077,666.80 1,012,167.56
1,377,666.80 1,172,538.56
9. EWER 9. ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE
FEWIR IR AT T : The aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:
EXH 0l
Closing Opening
] H (%) FHRER  RERE &8 H (%) FHRER BRERE
Provision Provision
Amount Percentage for bad debt Book value Amount Percentage for bad debt Book value
ARBT ARBT  ARBT ARBT ARBT ARBT
RMB (%) RMB RMB RMB (%) RMB RMB
1ER Within 1 year 336,650,876.24 60 (72,430.00) 336,578,446.24 550,386,645.56 52 — 550,386,645.56
1225 1102 years 98,262,055.09 18 (3.442,616.39)  94,819,438.70 240,790,172.17 23 — 240,790,172.17
2E3F 2to 3 years 38,422,806.92 7 (16,919,726.59)  21,503,080.33 100,234,298.30 9 (40,093,719.33) 60,140,578.97
REY::3 3to4years 22,877,942.86 4 (14,401,22359)  8,476,719.27 69,268,138.14 7 (41,560,882.88) 27,707,255.26
4EE Over 4 years 63,665,485.91 1 (63,665,485.91 ) - 100,807,778.45 9 (100,807,778.45) -
559,879,167.02 100 (98,501,482.48) 461,377,68454  1,061,487,032.62 100 (182,462,380.66)  879,024,651.96
IREBEAMEEERWOT ¢ The five largest outstanding debts are as follows:
FMEBRHREE 105 FE Uy o % #8 8 L 61
Total of thefive largest outstanding debts Share of total of accounts receivable
ARt RMB %
110,396,261.06 19.7
JE UK e 0 B4 B8 R R 5 A R 5% E AR 13 No amount due from any shareholder with more than a 5%
BRERK o shareholding in the Company is included in accounts receivable.
W de G £ # i JK By H FR 2 ]
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

10. HttFEW R

HittEWRIRER DATAT ¢

10. OTHER RECEIVABLES

The aging analysis of other receivablesis as follows:

FXH E201

Closing Opening
&8 HB(%) REER BERE &8 (%) WRER BERE

Provision Provision

Amount Percentage for bad debt Book value Amount Percentage for bad debt Book value
AERT AERT AERT AERT AERT AERT
RMB (%) RMB RMB RMB (%) RMB RMB
1EUR Within 1 year 158,911,635.11 54 — 158911,635.11 371,179,334.79 59 - 371,179,334.79
1228 110 2 years 21,819,617.87 9 —  21819617.87 59,084,267.81 9 - 59,084,267.81
253F 2to 3 years 11,875,980.77 4 (5,217,692.10)  6,658,288.67 23,223,681.12 4 (9,289472.45) 13,934,208.67
3E4F 3to 4 years 15,007,998.25 5 (9,014160.30)  59930837.95  106,279,733.38 17 (70,919,360.02) 35,360,373.36
EUL Over 4 years 80,798,700.97 2 (80,798,700.97 ) —  160,125,677.74 11 (160,125,677.74) =
294,413,932.97 100 (95,030,553.37) 199,383,379.60  719,892,694.84 100 (240,334510.21)  479,558,184.63

iR — FUANEMERRTEER
FHRREZEERREDFMNL2008E%

TIER » B2 BKFF5001) °

RREENEEBERDT ¢

Included in other receivables due within one year is a deposit of
USD12 million placed with Liaoning Trust and Investing

Company. Details are set out in Note 50 (1).

The five largest outstanding debts are as follows:

FMALBRHREH 16 H fi FE U R SRR R LL 6
Total of the five largest outstanding debts Share of total of other receivables
AR #T RMB %
172,626,207.50 59

BHF DRSS LERDBRRRF

Northeast

Electric

No amount due from any shareholder with more than a 5%
shareholding in the Company is included in other receivables.

Development

Company

Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

1 R 2 11. PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS
T e R % Htt Bl &t
Accounts Other
receivable receivables Total
AR¥TT AR¥T AR#T
RVMB RMB RMB
FHERE Opening balance 182,462,380.66 240,334,510.21 422,796,890.87
REFRE Provision for the year 6,498,477.91 10,681,892.05 17,180,369.96

ANEE[E /EHEEE  Written back / off for theyear  (107,342.37 ) (64,129,601.07)  (64,236,943.44)
REHMEHE  Other transfer for the year  (90,352,033.72) (91,856,247.82)  (182,208,281.54 )

ERERE Closing balance

98,501,482.48 95,030,553.37 193,532,035.85

REEHEAR —FRABDRAUFEN
BERMAIEERIR076ET - 2FR
EHZER AT REIREHE6,2888
T ° 2 R HEE53(3)

AEHMEHEREFISRETES
WLBREFATNERERSRE -

Rft&®

BNERRROFTAT -

The debt from a third party has been written off as it related to
plant and machinery amounting to RMB90.76 million in
compensation for a Company. The Company has already made
provision for the original loan amounting to RMB62.88 million.
Details are set out in Note 50 (3).

The other transfer for the year included the bad debt provision
related to Shenyang Transformers Ltd. and its subsidiaries in the
opening balance.

12.  ADVANCESTO SUPPLIERS

The aging analysis of advances to suppliersis as follows:

EXB ENY

Closing Opening
AE®T % ARET %
RMB % RMB %
1E R Within 1 year 22,621,039.75 78 189,260,539.42 63
1228 1to 2 years 6,439,342.46 22  65,964,994.04 22
2E3F 2 to 3 years — —  21,528,926.48 7
3FEMU L Over 3 years = —  25,320,206.88 8
29,060,382.21 100 302,074,666.82 100

R IRFREREE P BT 2 A% £
PRRRI -

It £ R #*

No amount is due from any shareholder with more than a 5%
shareholding in the Company isincluded in advances to suppliers.

el
)fg
$
24

FiR

S
a
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

13. FREBRER

13. INVENTORIESAND PROVISION FOR
DIMINUTION IN VALUE OF INVENTORIES

EXRY EN%
Closing Opening
28 KEER REEE 25 BEER REEE
Provision for Provision for

Amount  impairment  Book value Amount  imparment  Book value
AR¥T AR%T AR¥RT  AR¥=n AR®T ARBT
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

BEZ#ER Consumables with low value

AR Raw materials
EER Work in progress
ERR Finished goods
EFBm Merchandise

1,236,423.34 — 123642334 1871,712.89 —  1871,712.89
103,315,577.18  (25,749,576.82) 77,566,000.36 189,787,988.38 (36,085,111.80) 153,702,876.58
43,892,430.99  (2,036,961.74) 41,855,469.25 136,254,832.36 (19,402,517.91) 116,852,314.45
89,100,117.31  (17,409,180.30) 71,690,937.01 138,832,548.13 (33,004,822.26) 105,827,725.87
27,878,800.00 — 27,878,800.00 - - -

265,423, 348.82  (45,195,718.86) 220,227,629.96 466,747,081.76 (88,492,451.97) 378,254,629.79

FEFNERERHEL — FEH
DAEREERBRRANKERR A
ABEHHAE120MWE 2% EA
MO A20MWRERZESHA - BN
AESEEBABEELERER
£ B A B 7 2002F 1248 310 #
THRBERAZRERIEESEA
R¥2788B TEATEIIT - R
Fff 3£ 53(3) °

FEREEXGZDNT :

Merchandise represents 6 sets of 1220MW steam turbine generators
and 4 sets of 200MW steam turbine generators received as
compensation from athird party and its shareholder in settlement
of the debt owed to the Company. These generator sets are
classified as inventories as at December 31, 2002 as the directors
are of the opinion that the above-mentioned generator sets will be
sold in the near term. This merchandise was recorded at a book
amount of RMB27,880,000. Details are set out in note 53 (3).

Change in provision for impairment is as follows:

AR®T

RMB

FUBE Opening balance 88,492,451.97

REFRE Provision for impairment for the year 963,797.00
REEE Written back for the year (176,603.74 )
HibE 5 Other transfer for the year (44,083,926.37 )

FREGHE Closing balance 45,195,718.86

AEHMEREREFAGETRES
WLEREFATNHE -

Northeast Electric

The other transfer for the year included the amount related to
Shenyang Transformers Ltd. and its subsidiaries in the opening
balance.

Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

14. FHEAH 14. DEFERRED EXPENSES

* 5l Type EXB FANE
Closing Opening
AR#E AR
Rmb Rmb
BRE Heating expenses 652,505.39 730,365.99
R E Insurance 670,493.75 1,224,284.27
FEMNEERED VAT input 6,230,519.05 —
Hth Others 1,048,190.81 256,440.56
8,601,709.00 2,211,090.82

FREGHERIRHMALRNE The closing balance represents prepayment for which the beneficial

NEREHE -

period has not come to an end.

15, REBRERE 15. LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT
RE E201 EXB
Type Opening Closing
HEEH BEER BERE *FAM@ED) HEEH REER BERE
Investment Provision for Increase (Decrease) Investment  Provision for
amount impairment Book value for the year amount  impairment Book value
AR®T AR®T ARET AR®T ARET ARET AR®T
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
HRERE Other eqity investment 1984153808 (614946491 1369207317  (3013966.11)  10,050,107.06  (272,000.00) 10,678,107.06
REBRRRE Long term equity investment 5,325,645.40 (37,500.00) 528814540 7637500899  81,663154.39 — 8166315439
REREZR Difference on equity investment (1,561,477.11) = (1,561477.11)  (10,080,136.06)  (11,641,613.17) — (11,641,613.17)
ait Total 2360570637 (618696491 1741874146 6328090682 8097164828  (272,000.00) 80,699,648.28
RERERERBEEFSBNT : Movement of provision for impairment of long term investments°G
ARET
RMB
FOE Opening balance 6,186,964.91
AERMEY Addition for the year —
AEEOY Transfer for the year (37,500.00 )
H fth 85 1 2 Other transfer (5,877,464.91 )
FRY Closing balance 272,000.00
AEHMBLHEREFYHERES The other transfer for the year included the provision for
NEEBREFARNREHRERER impairment loss on long-term equity investment to Shenyang
BEEHE - Transformers Ltd. and its subsidiaries in the opening balance.
W |4 G T % J& Ji i i FR 7N ]
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15. RUKRERS (&
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Northeast

HitRER SRS E B R W
T

15.

A

follows:

LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)

Changes in other equity investment for the year are as

EREREL £X
BRRLFEHR BREH FERRARE RHERE EREXLA BEEHE BERE
Share of
Investment Changein equity ~ Accumulated  registered capital ~ Provision for Closing
Name of investee companies amount for the year change in investee company  impairment book value
ARET ARET ARET % ARET AR¥ET
RMB RMB RVB % RVB RMB
BMEHAERT  Jinzhou City Co-operative Bank  10,000,000.00 - — 6.34 — 10,000,000.00
RBRT Bank of Communications 1,000,000.00  (1,000,000.00)  (1,000,000.00) 0.84 — —
ERTREREEAR Shenyang Risk & Credit Co., Ltd. 1,000,000.00  (1,000,000.00) (1,000,000.00) 1.60 — —
Hith Others 1,964,073.17  (1,013966.11) (1,013,966.11) — (272,000.00) 678,107.06
&t Total 1396407317  (3,013966.11) (3,013,966.11) (272,000.00)  10,678,107.06
BeENRRERTEE SR (2) Changesin investment in associated companies
T
1:5:4 4 3 £%
BRRLRER BREE FERRAEE EHARE EMREXLE WEERE BRERE FEXRE
Share of  Provision
Change in equity Accumulated  registered capital for Closing  Principal
Name of investee companies |nvestment amount for the year change in investee company impairment Book value  operations
ARET ARET ARET % ARET  AEET
RMB RMB RMB % RMB RMB
ERRLEALHE 4,068,352.40 (18,587.78) 334,745.22 49,00 — 440300762 HEBZERE
EREERARA
Northeast Electrical Hitachi Transmission Manufacture of
and Transformation Machinery Co., Ltd. transformers and
transmission
equipment
EEEIEEERLA 75,239,722.48 2,020,334.29 2,020,334.29 4250 — 7126005677 HEEE
(Rt 5£53(2))
Shenyang Furukawa Cahle Company Manufacture of
Limited (see Note 53 (2)) electrical cable
RABGMBE(E) 700,000.00 (700,000.00)  (700,000.00) 3190 = — BEBSHH
Lingrong Insulation Material Factory Manufacture of
(see Note below) insulation
materials
BNBRENRERE 166,460.00 (166,460.00)  (166,460.00) 21.00 = — BEBLE
AREEDAER)
Jinzhou Jinrong Reactor Manufacture of
Manufacture Co., Ltd (see Note below) electrical
equipment
&3t Totd 80,174,534.88 1,135,286.51 1,488,619.51 — 81,663,154.39
Electric Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

15. RUIRERE (& 15. LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)
2 BELTAREAHEHFRN (2) Changesin investment in associated companies (continued)

T (&) :

7 AEEQTNFOEEME Note: The Company’s subsidiary, Jinzhou Power Capacitors Ltd
AEHEEAERLAKEE disposed of all its investment in the associated companies
MRBERARAERRELETH namely Lingrong Insulation Material Factory and Jinzhou
BRGMNEREREHES Jinrong Reactor Manufacture Co., Ltd to a third party.
REAARANREEZLE
=F

B RUBREREZR (3) Difference in long term equity investment
BRRLRER naeE FNRE HBER FEHRE gied MERE
Opening balance Period of ~ Amortization Closing balance
Name of investee companies Initial difference of difference  amortization ~ for theyear  of difference  Reason
ARET ARET AR%T ARE T
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ERIBERESR (1615321.15)  (1,561,477.11) 0E 53844.04  (1,507,633.07) BREEE
HEREERAR

Shenyang Shengao Metal Antisepsis Ltd. Differencein initial

investment

ERLTES (8,324,578.48) = 155 23123829 (8,093340.19) EREEARE

BRAR (B RMFE53(2)
Shenyang Furukawa Cable Company Limited Change of shares
from debt
(see Note 53 (2))
BNREEAR (2,040,639.91) — 108 —  (204063991) EMBERE
ERERDA g
Jinzhou Jinrong Reactor Manufacture Co., Ltd Increasein
shareholding
proportion
At Tota (11,98053954)  (1,561,477.11) 285,082.33  (11,641,613.17)
16. RERERE 16. INVESTMENT IN LONG TERM DEBENTURES
REER EJE]C FNRE EERD EXBET
Decr ease for
Type of debenture Maturity date Opening the year Closing
ARET AR AR% T
RMB RMB RMB
ENES Electricity bonds 2001 350,130.00 (350,130.00) —
B E % Treasury bonds 2001 1,900.00 1,900.00
FEES Housing bonds 2002 808,177.00 (808,177.00) —
1,160,207.00  (1,158,307.00) 1,900.00
W =] 4 G £ # i JK By H FR 2 ]
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

17. BERE  RAMERBMEER 17,

FIXED ASSETS, ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT

ERRE
EEREY WRRR RAE &t
Housing Machineryand  Motor vehicles
buildings equipment and others Total
AR AR AR¥TT AR
RMB RMB RVB RMB
F{E At cost
ENBE Opening 1,122,854919.98  654,930,850.60  326,613491.18  2,104,399,270.76
RERE Acquisition for the year 550,172.45 4,783,621.90 2,568,860.84 7,902,655.19
REH{hE S Other transfer for the year (413,469,093.14)  (285,958,732.30)  (286,818,239.89)  (986,246,065.33)
AEEEIREA Transfer from construction
in progress 22,232,085.42  33,101,406.37 945,164.00 56,278,655.79
REFSE Disposal —  (4,097,200.00) (691,000.00)  (4,788,200.00)
ERBE Closing 732,168,084.71  402,759,95557  42,618276.13  1,177,546,316.41
ZiHE Accumulated depreciation
ERE Opening 244729637.68  311,909485.05 20528742529  761,926,548.02
REGHRE Provision for the year 14,637,726.99  23,126,020.62 2,507,774.40 40,271522.01
REAMEY Other transfer for the year (142,844,848.13)  (128,285,594.94)  (183,505,671.08)  (454,636,114.15)
RERLE Disposal —  (4,089,623.69) (569,204.73)  (4,658,918.42)
ERBE Closing 116522,51654  202,660,287.04  23,720,23388  342,903,037.46
REEE Provision for impairment
ENBE Opening 104,618,704.65  34,111,84081  15652,345.64  154,382,891.10
REGHRE Provision for the year = 673,462.00 125,015.89 798,477.89
REAMEY Other transfer for the year (24,153904.65)  (30,852,032.54)  (15,652,345.64)  (70,658,282.83)
REEHA Written off for the year = (245,966.64) - (245,966.64)
ERBE Closing 80,464,800.00 3,687,303.63 125,015.89 84,277,119.52
ek Net
ENBE Opening 773,506,577.65  308,909,533.74  105,673,720.25  1,188,089,831.64
ERBE Closing 535,180,768.17 19641236490 1877302636  750,366,159.43
Her: Including
ERCHEAZEEFE Closing pledged assets, and 2110589641  16,902,499.56 = 38,008,395.97
Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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AEHMEHEREFAGRETEE
MABREFLRAMNKREEEHEN
AEEREEERHERENERIRA
EEHE -

HEEFAEHREALAHRAT
EEELTRANRAROAES
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7k WoE W (8)
Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

FIXED ASSETS, ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT (continued)

The other transfer for the year included the book value of assets
disposed in relation to Shenyang Transformers Ltd. and its
subsidiaries and Shenyang Hua Kang Restaurant & Entertainment
Ltd..

Provision for impairment represents the provision on the assets
with no production value for the Company during the year.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

L3 L3 L3
ht-$1 ] ENSRE /ey ZIAHK RtEoB X880 REXE THER
Addition for Transfer for Other reduction Percentage
Items Opening the year the year for the year Closing Source of funds ~ of completion
AR¥R ARBT ARBT ARBT ARBT %
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB %
ERE2ES 87,953,292.92 - - (87,953,292.92) - BERER
High voltage transformers Internal generated
and bank loans
2 GREREA(LER — — — — —
Including: Loan expense capitalized
AKEIR 38,903,867.90 6,956,016.78 (43,179,098.98) - 2,680,785.70 B %
Hydroelectric project Bank loans
He o BREREA(EHE 7,565,261.64 - (7,565,261.64 ) — —
Including: Loan expense capitalized
BEERREIR 24,014472.94 3,865,794.19 (12,165,312.23) (6,375,190.19) 9,339,764.71 HEREXR 80
High voltage transmission project Internal generated
and bank loans
He o EHEREA(LEE 3,501,654.73 844,506.64 (3,062,643.89 ) — 1,283,517.48
Including: Loan expense capitalized
SHREL BEREIR 934,244.58 - (934,244.58) — - EX
Construction in 24 &25/F for Kingdom hotel Bank loans
2 GRERER(LEH 246,333.33 = (246,333.33) = =
Including: Loan expense capitalized
151,805,878.34 10,821,810.97 (56,278,655.79) (94,328,483.11) 12,020,550.41
ERIRHERR (52,000.04) (52,090.04)
Provision for impairment
151,753,788.30 11,968,460.37

AEEMELHREFAGETRS
WLEREFARNHYE

E| £ E %

The other reduction for the year was for amounts related to
Shenyang Transformers Ltd. and its subsidiaries.

J& Jie i H FRt 75 ]
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

19. EREE 19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
1 ¥ ¥
REER REAR Riz & FNERN Amy B W FXBE FRMay
Methods of Addition for Transfer for ~ Amortization Remaining life
Items acquisition Original Opening the year the year for the year Closing for amortization

ARET AR®T  ARExR ARET ARET ARET 3

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB Years

TifE AR KA 16995523500  146,898,665.32 (86,474,580.47)  (1,400,761.37)  59,023,323.48 44.5
Land use right Injection

Vi) BA 450,000.00 405,000.00  264,000.00 — (45,000.00) 624,000.00 9
Franchise Injection

170,405,235.00  147,303,665.32  264,000.00  (86,474,580.47) (1,445,761.37)  59,647,323.48

HAENHERBEERETLTEE
F{EA A K%5,826,070.577T i 1 i fF
REEKERRAETIEFYIKTLS
1T o

AEBHYREFARKETRSNN
BREFRANHE-

Land use right owned by Fuxin Enclosed Busbars Ltd., with net
value of RMB5,826,070.57, was pledged to a bank as a collateral
for aloan.

The transfer for the year was for amounts related to Shenyang
Transformers Ltd. and its subsidiaries.

20 REFHEEH 20. LONG TERM DEFERRED EXPENDITURE

L FNRE FEROR  FEHHE FEHSK EXBRE  HRESY

Decrease Transfer Amortization Remaining life

Types Opening for the year for theyear  for the year Closing for amortization

AR%T AR%T AR¥RT  AR¥R ARBT 3

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB Years

EEEBER 6,856,913.78 —  (4545422.12) (1,325,176.10)  986,315.56 5
Improvement expenses

RUSHEANAFEHHZFA
HREENTERETARNEEA
S #5 4,545,422 12T °

Northeast Electric

The transfer for the year of long term deferred expenditure was for
amounts related to Shenyang Transformers Ltd. and its subsidiaries
amounting to RMB4,545,422.12.

Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

%0 A (& B 21. SHORT TERM LOANS
B EXH FHE
Type Closing Opening
AR#E AR
Rmb Rmb
BHRER Pledged loans
—ARM - RMB — 87,900,000.00
EHRER Charged loans
— AR - RMB 242,920,000.00 624,890,000.00
ERER Guaranteed loans
—ARH - RMB 147,930,000.00  395,477,000.00
—EnARY - RMB translated from US —  165,486,040.04
= ABM Loans on credit
—ARH -RMB 43,636,945.09 2,950,000.00
Total 434,486,945.09 1,276,703,040.04

EAraHEResBEAARY
29,000,000.007c ' EREMAFET
BRITBUHEEZT ERXRANEA
756% ERARAGHEE  EA
RITRFEY FFUARKREZHE

@0

BERERNEREERNIREE 2

The bank loan with principal RMB 29,000,000.00 and annual
interest rate of 7.56% borrowed from the Bank of China has
expired. The purpose of this bank loan was to renew the old one.
Since the bank has not requested the Company to repay the loan
immediately, the company has not repaid the |oan on schedule.

Details of the type and the amount of the assets pledged for the

BMWELITRHMFEL9 charged |oans are set out in Notes 17 and 19.
BfRE 22. BILLSPAYABLE
FXB FUE
Closing Opening
ARH AR
Rmb Rmb
PEALEE Bills of exchange from commercial party 10,000,000.00 —
RITARGES Bills of exchange from bank 4,000,000.00  32,650,000.00
Total 14,000,000.00  32,650,000.00
It £ % J& e s A R 4 7
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

23. MEFHIER 23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ERIERIER2MAOT : The aging analysis of accounts payable is as follows:
iR BN
Closing Opening
&8 ;4. tH tE B
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
AE®T (%) AR# T (%)
RMB (%) RMB (%)
kN Within 1 year 252,238,622.87 74 585,452,827.26 77
1226 1to 2 years 40,611,700.79 12 101,453,342.82 14
22 3F 2 to 3 years 16,357,512.03 5 10,417,011.55 1
EN L Over 3 years 32,318,053.56 9 60,184,118.65 8
Total 341,525,889.25 100 757,507,300.28 100

F& 1 W K % 58 o 8 X35 2 B 5%0L £

RIDRRIFE -

24. TRUIR®

TR 00 3R 6% B8 P AR 5 ] 5% £

IR0 AR SR B9 FRIR o

25. MEfTBxF

No amount due from any shareholder with more than a 5%
shareholding in the Company is included in accounts payable.

24. RECEIPTSIN ADVANCE

No amount due from any shareholder with more than a 5%
shareholding in the Company is included in receipts in advance.

25. DIVIDEND PAYABLE

FXH 3] | RtREA
Closing Opening Reason
AR® T AR®T
RMB RMB
B TR R A 903,606.44 4,195243.94 KRB IRRA

Dividend for employee shares

Unpaid dividend
for employee share

ARAMBFRIRMNBRERER

ARAENBIRERAF -

Northeast

Electric

The amount represents dividend payable for employee shares by a
subsidiary of the Company, Jinzhou Jinrong Electrical Equipment
Co., Ltd.

Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

EXRe 26. TAXES PAYABLE
EXB FE0H
Closing Opening
AR AR
Rmb Rmb
s Income tax (722,617.19)  (3,166,443.11)
BEH Value added tax 8,030,210.24  (5,106,198.56)
BER Business tax (32,756.06) 579,465.60
HWES City construction tax 638,124.65  (1,555,564.19)
Hith Others 3,449,467.49 4,380,294.53
Total 11,362,429.13  (4,868,445.73)
HtERR 27. OTHER PAYABLES
31 FXH F0H
Item Closing Opening
AR AR
Rmb Rmb
HEEK M Education additional tax 254,904.93 430,066.94
HRES Energy fund 4,532,475.62 4,532,475.62
HERGES Estimated adjustment fund 3,047,808.37 3,047,808.37
7,835,188.92 8,010,350.93
Hfth FE £ 3% 28. OTHER CREDITORS
HMEMNETIEBR IO T : The aging analysis of other creditorsis as follows:
XY E9%
Closing Opening
&8 ;4. G | nd ]
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
AR¥T (%) AR TT (%)
RMB (%) RMB (%)
1E R Within 1 year 62,792,684.24 67 148,592,269.24 47
12 2F 1to 2 years 6,770,785.57 7 88,980,213.73 28
22 3% 2 to 3 years 5,363,149.50 6 19,969,915.77 6
ki:30 e Over 3 years 17,932,120.06 20  58,736,468.55 19
Total 92,858,739.37 100 316,278,867.29 100
It (o R i3 J& Bt # H it 2 ]

N,
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

28. Rt (&)

RRBB=FNRERIRAREY

FEMEENERR -

H B MREREE T E R D R)5%

TROKRROFER

28. OTHER CREDITORS (CONTINUED)

The reason that significant other creditors over 3 years of age has
not been settled is because the balance has not been reconciled
between the Company and suppliers.

No amount due from any shareholder with more than a 5%
shareholding in the Company is included in other creditors.

29. BiREH 29. ACCRUED EXPENSES
EXH ENH PEREFREERERA
Closing Opening Reason
AR T AR¥ T
RMB RMB
MNEER 516,921.53 3,554,514.16 BEEBEAZA
Interest expenses Not settled
RN EEE A 3,369,700.00 2,000,000.00 BEAEBEAIA
Service expense from intermediaries Not settled
Htb 2,856,004.64 1,482,795.92 © 8 4 1B s R A
Others Not settled
Total 6,742,626.17 7,037,310.08

3. —FANMHRBMAR

30. CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LOANS

EXH FHAH

Closing Opening

AR# AR ¥

Rmb Rmb

RITERAER) Bank loans (guaranteed) 170,410,000.00  498,258,879.02

Northeast Electric

Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

RAER LONG TERM LOANS
fBREL XY FPH ERHER 2 FUE EREH
Loan Annual
Lender Closing Opening period interest rate  Terms
AR ARET %
RMB RMB %
IAmRRBXT 8,000,000.00 14,500,000.00 1—2 7560 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
IAmRRBXT 19,000,000.00 25,400,000.00 -3 6.210 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
IAmRRBXT 9,410,000.00 45,000,000.00 3—4 7560 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
IAmRRBEXT 72,100,000.00 — 4FEBLE 621756 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Over Guaranteed loans
Bank of China 4 years
IThDE = 23,000,000.00 1—2 6.675 ERMER
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
IThDE = 2,000,000.00 -3 6.675 ERMEN
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
IThDE — 9,400,000.00 3—4 6.675 ERMEN
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
RE BB 143,656,711.01 80,000,000.00 4F L 6.190 ERMER
China Development Bank Over Guaranteed loans
4 years
RE BB — 10,000,000.00 1—2 6210 ERIER
China Development Bank Guaranteed loans
REBBT = 20,000,000.00 -3 6.210 ERMER
China Development Bank Guaranteed loans
RE BB — 30,000,000.00 3—4 6.210 ERMER
China Development Bank Guaranteed loans
RE BB — 3,308,951.01 ERER
China Development Bank Guaranteed loans
=] 4 G ) #® i e By A i 2 ]

N,
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31.

Northeast

(%)

RGER 31. LONG TERM LOANS (continued)
BREL XY FNB ERHR FHE EREH
Loan Annual
Lender Closing Opening period interest rate Terms
AR ARET %
RMB RMB %
BHTEXRTRERST — 3,110,000.00 1—2 7.605 HEREN
Jinzhou Commercial Bank Guaranteed loans
BMNERRTRERST 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1—2 7722 ERER
Jinzhou Commercial Bank Guaranteed loans
BERTHMATKELST  9,600,000.00 17,600,000.00 1—2 7722 ERER
Jinzhou Commercial Bank Guaranteed loans
BERTHEMDTRKERST 13,500,000.00 — 2—-3756—7722 EREK
Jinzhou Commercial Bank Guaranteed loans
REIBHRTEMT AT 2,900,000.00 - 1—2 8.073 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
HEIFHRTEMT AT 3,000,000.00 — 1—2 8.073 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
RERTHRMNT DT 13,000,000.00 — 1—2 6.903 ERER
Bank of China Guaranteed loans
RERTEMDTEED 150,000.00 — 1—2 000 EREX
Bank of Communications Guaranteed loans
IFRMITHAXST — 30,600,000.00 1—2 7722 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
TAHMDTHAXT 16,000,000.00 7,000,000.00 2—3 7722 EREX
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed loans
Bank of China
TAHMDTHAXT 3,700,000.00 — 4ENE 8.073 ERMEX
Industrial & Commercial Over Guaranteed loans
Bank of China 4 years
TAHMDTHAXT 2,000,000.00 — 23 7722 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Pledged |loans
Bank of China

Electric

Development

Company

Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

REGER LONG TERM LOANS (continued)
BREM XY N8 ERHR FHE EREH
Loan Annual
Lender Closing Opening period interest rate Terms
AR¥T AR¥T %
RMB RMB %
IABMOTHAXZST 12,000,000.00 — 4EBE 7722 BHREK
Industrial & Commercial Over Pledged loans
Bank of China 4 years
REZEERK AR = 361,148,879.02 2—3Libort1475% ERER
CCIC Finance Limited Guaranteed |loans
BERT 4,600,000.00 4,600,000.00 2—3 6210 ERER
Agricultural Bank of China Guaranteed loans
mEERT 1,400,000.00 1,400,000.00 2—3 000 EREX
Chinatrust Commercial Bank Guaranteed loans
Nt 339,016,711.01 693,067,830.03
Subtotal
MERTEREE
Loan of Shenyang Transformers Ltd.
IAMRABRXT = 109,500,000.00 4F L\ k 6210 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Over Guaranteed loans
Bank of China 4 years
ITmRBREXT = 39,250,000.00 4F LA E 6210 ERER
Industrial & Commercial Over Guaranteed loans
Bank of China 4 years
IAHEFXT = 5,000,000.00 1—2 7614 EREK
Industrial & Commercial Guaranteed |loans
Bank of China
BREEEHBRENA = 8,850,000.00 4B £ ERER
National Machine Light Over Guaranteed loans
Industrial Weave 4years
Investment Company
N = 162,600,000.00
Subtotal
B —FERIHRE
BEERSEE)  (170,410,000.00) (498,258,879.02)
Less: current portion of
Long term loans
(quaranteed)
—FREENRE 168,606,711.01 357,408,951.01
Loan to be repaid after
one year
=4 G R B & J& By f 133 2 )

NEE
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32 BHEMR 32. SPECIFIC PAYABLE
EXB FRNH
Closing Opening
AR# AR
Rmb Rmb
957t Bk B B B B Interest payable for the five-year plan —  21,880,487.85
ZEMEEBREX Funds set aside for technology development 13,240,955.32 1,501,071.80
Tota 13,240,955.32 23,381,559.65
33. B& 33. SHARE CAPITAL
KEEATRAGEFHERMT : Movement of shares of the Company is as follows:
3] FEARED £
(Decrease) Increase
Opening for the year Closing
(%) (%) (%)
(shares) (shares) (shares)
- REHRBEREG 1 Nonisted shares
1L BERARS (1) Promoter's shares
—EAXEERH -State owned shares 380,520,000.00 (48,000,000.00) 332,520,000.00
—BEREA -Domestic Legal person
BERS held shares 91,300,000.00 48,000,000.00 139,300,000.00
REMRBRAAH Total of non-listed shares 471,820,000.00 — 471,820,000.00
. BEWRBRA 2 Listed shares
1L ARELER (1) Domestic RMB ordinary
shares 143,600,000.00 — 143,600,000.00
2. BHETHER (2) Overseas listed foreign
investment shares 257,950,000.00 - 257,950,000.00
ELmRBRG A Total of listed shares 401,550,000.00 = 401,550,000.00
= RAZZ 3. Total number of shares 873,370,000.00 - 873,370,000.00
Northeast Electric Development Company Limited



33. K& (&)

rtERNEREESARRLT

It

ARBEBERREERIIES
REMETHRBER®D °

BHEMHNERHR)RIEHR
EERBARSMERAT LD
BRAD

FESAROKHRERAE
YERSES -

BRARLBEEREEELD
AEBIEELARAIHEE])
BFEHB2BEREEEARR
REARBEMT R4

() EELARBEEMEER
A 8% 23,000 % 14 2002 &
225 BRETER I
BEXERDA o BEL
BEXERLAAEESR
AEEGRLEERERA
A)ERBFEEARLDF
23000 BEREIBEAR
1 B} 7N 8 %8 26.34% 0 B
KAFE-—FARR °

(2 LBEMREHERER
ABREEATUREERE
BHAR  RAFERSE
SEATFENEBEA
f% 4,800 I8 °

(8 BHLAZEHER &
BARFENADAEE
REC2HHEMAE -

& ak Wk W (8

Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The above shares have nominal value of RMB1 each.

1.

Domestic RMB ordinary shares represent the shares listed
on the Shenzhen stock Exchange.

Overseas listed foreign investment shares (“H shares”)
represent the shares listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

All the domestic and ‘H’ shares rank pari passu in all
respects.

Northeast Electrical Transmission and Transformation
Equipment Group Corporation Limited (“NET”), the
promoter, holds 450,520,000 Stated-owned legal person
shares. The movement of the share capital during the year is
as follows:

(@ On February 25, 2002, 230,000,000 Stated-owned
legal person shares in the Company held by NET were
auctioned and acquired by Shenyang Shengang
Industrial Company Limited (now renamed as
“ Shenyang Northeast-Electrical Holding Company”).
At the end of the reporting year, Shenyang Northeast-
Electrical Holding Company held 230,000,000 shares
(26.34% of total share capital) of the Company and
has become the single largest shareholder of the
Company.

(b)  Shanghai Bao Yu Real Estate Consultancy Limited

acquired 48,000,000 State-owned legal shares of the
Company through an open bid.

(c) Attheend of the reporting year, al of the remaining
shares of the Company held by NET were auctioned.

B i H iR
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

34.

St

Northeast

BEXNE 34. CAPITAL SURPLUS
FPRE FEAME FERIB FRBE
Addition  Reduction for
Opening for the year the year Closing
AE¥T AE¥T AR¥T AR¥T
RMB RMB RMB RMB
RAHE Share premium 115,547,484.00 - —  115,547,484.00
BRRZEE Difference on related
parties transactions 7,609,544.18 —  (3,699,344.18)  3,910,200.00
HthEARDR Other capital surplus 491,617,902.05 151,814,623.88 —  643,432,525.93

614,774,930.23 151,814,623.88  (3,699,344.18) 762,890,209.93

REAGEFBPSHERKARAN
ZNBREHBRENCERHRE)  £E
FHIAEKRATAERARE L4008 ET
R R B A K% 30,085,0005T F 1€
MBI E 5T A R ¥ 148,115,279.707T
EWHALTRERLES - BAKEF
EATRCHLEEE  HtHHILE
EENEXRRAE—BHREEE
3,699,344 18 Z E AR NE—H b E A

According to arepayment agreement entered into by the Company
and the syndicate, led by CCIC Finance Limited (% it 2 Bl 3
17 /A \), the syndicate exempted the Company from repayment
of atotal of USD14 million of principal and interest (amounting to
RMB30,085,000) and withheld tax payable with a total of
RMB148,115,279.70. All of the above amounts were recognized
in capital surplus for the year. As Shenyang was disposed during
the year, the difference arising on related parties transactions from
Shenyang in previous years (RMB3,699,344.18) was transferred
to other capital surplus.

BRoR 35 SURPLUS RESERVE FUND
EE ERER EE
BROoWSE LEe LEd Bt
Statutory  Discretionary Statutory Public
Surplusreserve Surplusreserve  welfare fund Total
ARE T ARE T ARE T ARE T
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ERRENGHE Opening & closing 48,091,633.34  28,284,687.96  32,210,803.10 108,587,124.40

EELARETARBEHARNER
BALALELEHNBEREMDAE
Ko FERBEAARATABINE
BEA -

Electric

Development

The statutory surplus reserve can be utilized to offset |osses of the
Company, expand operations of the Company and increase the
share capital of the Company. The statutory public welfare fund
can be utilized to provide welfare for workers of the Company asa
whole.

Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

36. UNDISTRIBUTED LOSSES

&8
Amount
ARE T
RMB

HEANFAORIEANE
e ENRDEANERAEE (K4

Opening undistributed losses before adjustment
Add: adjustment for opening undistributed
profit (Note 4)

(1,263,594,274.99 )

(14,837,544.28 )

BEAFIAIEAH

AR FERE

Opening undistributed losses after adjustment
Add: net profit for the year

(1,278,431,819.27 )
69,002,412.01

ERRDEFH Closing undistributed losses (1,209,429,407.26 )
FEEBERA 37. INCOME FROM PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

FERHHB LERHE

2002 2001

AR®T AR T

RMB RMB

BREREEM Ancillary products for transformers 208,075,141.18  557,509,824.63

= B E High voltage switches 524,239,619.92  465,592,465.60

O RigE Voltage and current transformers == 61,974,921.91

ENERSE Power capacitor 153,873,591.19  133,914,510.19

HEAR & Enclosed busbars 27,188,749.12  17,540,127.65

BEHNERE Food, beverage and accommodation 35,752,216.65  39,186,682.78

Hi Others 2,325,133.10 6,223,158.51

Total 951,454,451.16 1,281,941,691.27

REFRABEFHEWABEAAR
#5202,805,038.187T * 14 X A AHI 2 &F
SHEUW A BY21% °

BEREREERBAZRCHEN TS
REFAT2002F18 18 —REHE

HERHOBA -

It G

sales income for the year.

Sales income from the top 5 largest customers for the year
amounted to RMB202,805,038.18, representing 21% of the total

Income from ancillary products for transformers included the
income from Shenyang Transformers and its subsidiaries for the

period from January 1, 2002 to the date of disposal.

R #* J& i i H FiR

S
a
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

38. FEXERE 38. COSTS FROM PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS
EERMB LTERMHB
2002 2001
AR AR¥T
RMB RMB
BEREREEM Ancillary products for transformers 146,140,563.83  485,266,244.41
= B E High voltage switches 360,279,566.55  414,852,400.72
bR Voltage and current transformer = 57,468,158.16
ENERE Power capacitors 85,952,923.04 84,341,119.29
HEARR Enclosed busbars 19,583,480.37  18,174,373.51
Z2HERE Food, beverage and accommodation 25,159,843.92  35,531,535.25
HAth Others 57,888.48 2,733,250.03
Total 637,174,266.19 1,098,367,081.37
39. FEXERERMN 39. TAX AND ADDITIONS FROM PRINCIPAL
OPERATIONS
MR
nE Item Basis of charges
HWEB Urban maintenance and construction surcharge 7%
HEEK M Educational surcharge 4%
EER Business tax 5% - 20%
40, HthX¥FH 40. OTHER OPERATING PROFITS
EERMB LTERMHB
2002 2001
AR ¥ AR¥TT
RMB RMB
MREEE Sales of materials
— A - Revenue 12,283,746.64  32,111,781.82
—HK & - Costs (8,737,183.96)  (29,992,404.22)
3,546,562.68 2,119,377.60
B - EBmE Technical services and transportation
—IRA - Revenue 49,934,439.41  26,059,734.71
—HK R - Costs (18,502,573.35)  (11,726,880.62)
31,431,866.06 14,332,854.09
=i Total 34,978,428.74 16,452,231.69
Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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MEEH 41. FINANCIAL EXPENSE
FERMH TERHH
2002 2001
AEET AR¥ T
RMB RMB
AMEXH Interest expenses 65,760,685.22  136,151,463.51
o FIE A Less: interest income 873,058.11 41,040.69
ERTE-PS Exchange loss 256,741.22 135,976.10
Hth Others 1,142,877.03 2,886,024.28
Total 66,287,245.36  139,132,423.20
REKE 42. INVESTMENT INCOME
FERMB TERHE
2002 2001
AR%T AR
RMB RMB
RHREWE Gain from long-term investment
REREEINRE Share of results of subsidiaries by equity
accounting method 2,001,746.51 247,659.15
HEFATREWZE Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 60,135,842.13 —
Hit &R E W& Profit from associated companies 1,500,000.00 203,926.25
RIEREZREEH Amortization of difference in equity investment 285,082.33 53,844.04
=gl € Other income 460,964.96 (172,000.00)
Total 64,383,635.93 333,429.44
Jt R 13 Ji& Ji& fr A FR 2 )
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

42.

43.

44,

wAEWMS (F)

HEFLARIRERRREARLETF
DNEAMEREHEREFNRLBREL
A([EE]) HWRERE - HELER
RE W & 2 A B B 5 1Y L 100%
MREEEARLEERETIRED
Ak BEERANSREEERNT
BEENEBERNKE  N2RES
ZHFEEZRREILB2001F12H 31
RFEEEMLE{2002F1A18E
REEZHNCEERAESE - Hf
EEERERRZZARBMSENE
B0 R EEE AR BERET
BRAQAFAN BREERHEFRES
ZRFEENZERHRNKE - 2R
Fff &E 54 ©

42. INVESTMENT INCOME

The gain on disposal of subsidiaries represented the disposal of the
100% equity interest in Shenyang Transformer Ltd. and the 60%
equity interest in Shenyang Hua Kang Restaurant & Entertainment
Ltd. to Northeast Construction and Installation Corporation. The
gain represents the difference between the consideration for the
disposal and the net asset value of the disposed companies as at the
date of disposal of such equity interest. The net asset value of
Shenyang Transformers Ltd. as at the date of disposal was
determined based on the net asset value of Shenyang Transformers
Ltd. as at December 31, 2001 less the loss arising from this
company from January 1, 2002 to the date of disposal. Details are
set out in Note 54.

RS A 43. SUBSIDY INCOME
AE Item FERHE LEZHH
2002 2001
AR%T AR¥ T
RMB RMB
BH Tax refund 480,016.03 3,730,000.00

AEENHBRARIELER IR

Eo

Other income for the year represents arefund of foreign enterprise
tax

EEHMEA 44, NON-OPERATING INCOME
HE®ERN Type NE FERHY ITERHY
Nature 2002 2001
ARET AR¥T
RMB RMB
EEEEEEIWE Gan on disposal of fixed assets 425,774.16 759,805.83
S ON Penalty income 216,262.00 64,459.19
Hth Others 1,323,718.20 317,951.26
Total 1,965,754.36 1,142,216.28
Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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EXNxH 45, NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
FHEHER Type AE FERHY TERHH
Nature 2002 2001
AR®T AR®TRT
RMB RMB
EEEEKEE  Provision for impairment on fixed
IRmEEE assets and construction in progress 552,541.25 154,434,981.14
REEEEE Loss on disposal of fixed assets
BB 14,106.51
Htb Others 1,668,097.16 6,705,138.76
Total 2,234,744.92 161,140,119.90
kY 46. INCOME TAX
FERMH FFERFH
2002 2001
AR%T AR
RMB RMB
DA EGHET BB Income tax payable by the Company — —
FARIEFEH Income tax payable by subsidiaries 5,370,721.74  (1,806,562.86)
Total 5,370,721.74 (1,806,562.86)
7= # 47, SEGMENT INFORMATION

EALAREEREHHINERRA
BELZBHONA L BETER

PR &

E| G

information is provided in this respect.

£ % J& Jie

i

H FRt

Since 90% of total revenue were generated from sales of
transmission and transformer equipment, no further segment

N,
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

48. ARFEEHHRAAHR 48.

(1) EMERR

HittEWRIRRDTAT :

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY

(1)  Other receivables

The aging analysis of other receivablesis as follows:

EXB FNY
Closing Opening
&8 :4:] REER BERE &8 L4l BRER REEE
Provision Provision
Amount Percentage for bad debts Book value Amount Percentage for bad debts Book value
ARBT (%) ARKT AERBT ARET (%) ARET ARET
RVB (%) RVB RMB RVB (%) RVB RVB
1ELLR - Within 1 year 106,844,284.00 85 — 106,844,284.00 249,408,121.82 64 249,408,121.82
1225 1to2years 19,509,988.47 15 (1470227.32) 1803976115 3,280,784.32 1 3,280,784.32
2Z3F  2t03years — - — - — — —
3E4E 3lodyeas = = = — 9287880000 3% (62878800.00)  30,000,000.00
4ENE Over 4 yeas = = = = = = = =
Total 126,354,272.47 100 (1,470,227.32) 124,884,045.15 345,567,706.14 100  (62,878,800.00)  282,688,906.14
2 RHERE (2) Long term investments
R ltems E301 FXH
Opening Closing
FERM *ERY
BREH WEER RERE AE®T PN BREH WEER BERE
Investment  Provision for Increase for Decrease for Investment Provision for
amount impairment Book value the year the year amount impairment Book value
ARER ARET ARET ARETR ARET ARER
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
REMERE  Long term equity
investment 388,773,416.27 — 388,773,416.27 123,399,148.00  (119,746,308.40)  392,426,255.87 302,426,255.87
2 Including:Investment
HYDFARE insubsdiaies  384,351,730.87 - 384,351,730.87  46,157,680.68  (119,746,308.40)  310,763,103.15 310,763,103.15
HEELE  Investment in
RE associated
companies 4,421,685.40 - 4,421,685.40  77,241,467.32 - 81,663,152.72 81,663,152.72
REREZE Difference on
equity investment - - —  (8324578.48) 23123829 (8,093,340.19) (8,093,340.19)
HBR@ERE  Investment in other
equity 10,000,000.00 — 10,000,000.00 — - 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
A3 Total 308,773,416.27 - 398,773,416.27 11507456952  (119,515070.11)  394,332,915.68 304,332,915.68

AHHALHRBEREARE
119,746,308.407T

The decrease of the long term investments represents the disposal
of investments amounting to RMB119,746,308.40.

Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued) Nee

48, DAEEERHEREBZE® (B) 48 NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(2 RHERE #E) (2)  Long term investments (continued)
HtRERERAFLEBR N The movements in other equity investments are as follows:
T

#E® FERG HRRRE 3 3
BRRLFER e BELH HAH RiAEE BRASLA WEER RERE
Percentage of  Provision for ~ Book value at
Name of investee company Investment Investment Changein  Accumulated registered capital diminution  the end of the
period amount the year changes  of the investee in value reporting year
ARET ARET ARET % ARET ARET
RMB RMB RMB % RMB RMB
BNTEXRTROERLT RH 10,000,000.00 = = 6.34 —10,000,000.00
Jinzhou City Co-operative Bank Long term
HBERNRAREAFEHER The movements in the investments in associated companies are as
mE follows:
R TR £X
BRRLFER REHR REEW RHNIARE HBRFHLH WEER BERE TERE
Percentage of Provision Book value
Investment Changesin registered capital  for diminution  at end of the Principal
Name of investee company Investment period amountaccumulated interest of investee invalue reporting year operations
F AR¥ET ARET % ARET ARET
Years RMB RMB % RMB RMB
EERLEAVHLERBERLT % 4,068,352.40 334,74355 49.00 — 440309595 HERLE
RE
Northeast Electrical Hitachi Transmission and Manufacture of
Transformation Machinery Co, Ltd. transmission and
transformation
machinery
EELIEEERAT 15 75,239,722.48 2,020,334.29 4250 —  77,260,056.77 HEE
Shenyang Furukawa Cable Company Limited Manufacture of
electrical cable
Eh
Total 79,308,074.88 2,355,077.84 — 81,663,152.72
RHREREEZSR Difference on Equity Investment
BRRLFER neeE ENBRE HBBNE FERBR Eied VMEFE
Balance as Period for Amortization  Remaining balance
Name of invested company Opening  at January 1, 2002 amortization for theyear  after amortization Reason
ARET ARET 3 ARET ARET
RMB RMB Years RMB RMB RMB
BERLIEEERAA (8,324,578.48) = 15 231,238.29 (8093340.19) MEEBARRE
(8 R ME532)
Shenyang Furukawa Cable Company Limited Transfer of share from debt

(see Note 53 (2))
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

48, DEEERHEBREBZE® (H) 48 NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(2 ROERE #E) (2)  Long term investments (continued)
HFARARERELHBERN The movements in the investments in subsidiaries are as
T follows:
| Items £ 1] £33 )| FERD FXBE

Increase for Decrease for
Opening the year the year Closing
ARE T ARE T ARET ARET
RMB RMB RMB RMB
REKE Investment cost 1,388,383,413.00 17,658,585.45  (666,690,793.00)  739,351,205.45
EAZTAREE Share of results of
subsidiaries (1,011,502,691.36)  28,/499,095.23  554,415493.83  (428,588,102.30)
BAFLAH Increase in recognized
EMEARDNE  capital surplus of
subsidiary 7,471,009.23 —  (7471,009.23)
&it Total 384,351,730.87 46,157,680.68  (119,746,308.40)  310,763,103.15
(3 RELGSHEA (3)  Long term deferred expenditure
£ ¥ ¥ i
BER FMRE BHEY ] FXRBE HBY
Transfer for Amortization Remaining life
Type Opening theyear for the year Closing for amortization
ARB T AR T AR T ARBT £
RMB RMB RMB RMB  Years
FEEEER 264,999.99 —  (29,999.99)  235,000.00 5

Housing improvement
expenditure

4 —ERIBHERHBEE (4)  Long term liabilities due within one year
EXB FOH
2002 2001
AR% AR
Rmb Rmb
RITERIER) Bank loans (guaranteed) —  361,148,879.02

Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued) Nee

AFEEREHERAEBE® () 48 NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(5) BEKH (5)  Investment income
FERHR LEZRHY
2002 2001
ARH AR
Rmb Rmb
REKREW R Long term investment income
HEFAAREWSE Gain on disposal of equity of subsidiaries 60,135,842.13 =
RS EERWE  Share of results of subsidiaries by equity
accounting method 8,997,570.09  (655,799,381,64)
FERARDE Profits from associated companies
ROFE 1,500,000.00 —
REREEZHEMSE  Amortization of difference on equity investment 231,238.29 —
Tota 70,864,650.51 (655,799,381,64)
HEFLARARERE SR Details of gain from disposal of subsidiaries interest are set
42 0 out in Note 42.
ABATHRERERS 49. RELATED PARTIESAND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
(1) FrEEHBERNEE (1) Related parties with a controlling relationship
WEHER HERBE FERE 2 ALRRRE BEHRERRYE ZEEREA
Name of Place of Principal Relationship
related parties registration  operations with the Company  Nature or type Legal representatives
BHERLEZR EEY RKERESE E-BARR HRLF R
BRAF & W
Shenyang Northeast-  Shenyang, Equity Sole largest Limited liability Tian Li
Electrical Holding  Liaoning investment sharehol der
Company
RUEBLERE EEY RERES RERRR BRAF BEZ
EERTF & W
Northeast Electrical  Shenyang, Equity Origina Limited liability Zhou Bao Yi
Transmissionand  Liaoning investment  controlling
Transformation sharehol der
Equipment Group
Corporation

e £ R % J& Jie i H FRt /S Gl
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
NEE

49. MBATRMERRERS (&) 49. RELATED PARTIESAND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(2 HFEEFBEROBEYS N (2) Registered capital of related parties with a controlling
BEARHEEZ®L relationship and its movement
WEHER ENB  FEANE  FERIE EXB
Name of related party Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
AR AR AR#ET AR#ET
RMB RMB RMB RMB
BHERILEER 76,000,000.00  59,000,000.00 — 135,000,000.00
BRAF
Shenyang Northeast-Electrical
Holding Company
REBEERE 1,320,000,000.00 — — 1,320,000,000.00
£ NG

Northeast Electrical Transmission and
Transformation Equipment Group

Corporation
B FHFEEFBENBEHLFER (3) Shareholding of related parties with a controlling
nEEEREEZ(t relationship and its movement
(TP ] T FEAMN FEROM £XN
Name of related party Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
AEBR % AR%R % AEER % ABM%R %
RMB % RMB % RMB % RMB %
EBRLBER  Shenyang Northeast-Electri - — 230,000,000.00 26.34 - — 230,000,000.00 26.34
BRAT cal Holding Company
RLBEERE  Northeast Electrical Transmission 380,520,000.00 4356 = — (3%9,520,000.00) (42:30) 11,000,000.00 1%
£BLT and Transformation Equipment
Group Corporation
FHEEHBERNBEE L TER Details of movements of shareholding and equity with
NREEREZLFRMFE controlling related parties are stated in Note 33.4.

33.4°

Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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Name of related party
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49. RELATED PARTIESAND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Related parties without a controlling relationship

HBAFMRE
Relationship with the Company

Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

REBHEBEZEEEHEEAA
NET Sales co.

RtBEZERFEREELHOLA

NET Import & Export Co.

RtBGEEEBMEMN L A
NET Xiamen Co.

RUEBBEEE LB A
NET Shanghai Co.

RIEtBSEEEEXLA
NET Property Development Co.

RitGEEEBP KL A
NET Finance Co.

BIEEREMK

Fushun Porcelain Factory

RRENERHRRK
Dandong Power Capacitors Ltd.

FERRR2FRQH

Subsidiary of original controlling shareholder

RERBRZF DA
Subsidiary of original controlling shareholder

FERRRZF1QH

Subsidiary of original controlling shareholder

FERRRZFRQH

Subsidiary of original controlling shareholder

FERRRZFRQH

Subsidiary of original controlling shareholder

FERRRZFRQH

Subsidiary of original controlling shareholder

FERRRZFRH

Subsidiary of original controlling shareholder

RERBRZFAH
Subsidiary of original controlling shareholder

>
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
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49. MBATRMERRERS (&) 49. RELATED PARTIESAND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

G5) LRELABEHIERAFER (5)  Significant related party transactions with the above-related
ETWNTERBERS : parties for the year are as follows:
HERXE Sales and purchases
DNECEH L HERKBEY Details of sales and purchases of goods by the Group with
FEPAENNT : related parties are as follows:

TERHB LFRITE

2002 2001
AR®TT AR®T
RMB RMB
HE Sales
RtEHBEERMEE  NET Import & Export Co.

O T — 32,367,521.37
RIEWEERESE  NET Sales Co.

HELT 183,760.68 4,075,418.80
REtBgEEE NET Xiamen Co.

EM2AF — 367,521.37
4L Z £ M L 52 7 NET Shanghai Co. 2,119,658.12 —

Total 2,303,418.80 36,810,461.54
R Purchases
RtHBEERMEE  NET Import & Export Co.

EHOARA —  28,231,851.91
RIEtHEELEEE NET Property Development Co.

EERRAF — 1,231,522.58
WIEZEER Fushun Porcelain Factory 24,279,096.00 22,380,755.98
RAEFRENE Dandong Power Capacitors Ltd.

AR 302,100.00 1,027,971.79

Total 24,581,196.00 52,872,102.26
NREAR IR ENERER Transaction prices with related parties are the same as those with
Hi IR A X5 MR o third parties.

Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

49. RELATED PARTIESAND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(6) Receivables from and payables to related parties

HE ABAE XY EN8
Items Name of related party Closing Opening
ARET AR®T
RMB RMB
FE Wbk 54 % 2 & FE Wk K RIBSEREREHELT 8,761,798.72 16,793,977.81
Accounts receivable and NET Sales Co.
other receivables
RIBEERERELT 72,227,208.09 78,055,531.20
NET
RIBEEREREELOLR 3,415,167.69 57,151,207.05
NET Import & Export Co.
RIGBEREHRBELR 25,325,684.19 98,260,831.32
NET Finance Co.
109,729,858.69 250,261,547.38
EMAEARECEMNR BIEEZ R 14,382,358.00 7,506,942.60
Accounts payable and other ~ Fushun Porcelain Factory
payables
RIBEEREREELOLR 467,007.00 118,830.00
NET Import & Export
RIBEERERELT 19,133,101.52 5,037,987.82
NET
33,982,466.52 12,663,760.42
75,747,392.17 237,597,786.96

AFEREERE T ARIRE
£ EWIR T R 5w R 5t
RERKREEAARHY
75,085,552.177C ° F K W&
BREFARFEAARY
661,840.007T °

A provision for bad debts was made by the Group for the
amount due from NET and its subsidiaries in connection
with accounts receivable and other receivables amounting
to RMB75,085,552.17. The unprovided net balance at the
year end is RMB661,840.00.
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

LAER

BEEESERAL  RAFEUT
HEEER:

DAFHREZERBRE QT
LU 578 [ 5 1)2,0008 £ T
B (1 & A K ¥ 16,553.208
) BEGEHKH(ERMIE
FEAFAR) (S RMEL %
AR ETIEEMARBEWE o
AFEEBEEHIER20008 =
AERNEEEERSH LB
MEBEEANER - BEAEE
BEIFEERETH - BE
2002 12H 31H LA T E W 2
BEREBENBERER &
B 200BERER(FTEAR
#9 92330E ) REARES
MEMBRENEES RN HE
R REREEGEEEIB
BRERAS  HILRTRR
o

ARAARERBRREARRLE
BERBEEEQTERELK
RITEHFTEMEE A A R %3,000
BAWERERZERBEAL
AREETRBEM - FEKXK
RITEMR2001F 2AHEE A
ARAKDARERFD  ERE
BERAEARE2 640BETR
HENE  AREMAASTE
KARBRTHEBRRAZRAAHN
RBRFE 8D FEARE R KR
TZENRREEREN  BE
BRAFRSEE AREMRA
N B EY B R KR 1T BE R
MEERE AL AREE
EEFRASEE - BRI A A
FEFHHBRERESE -

Electric

50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the balance sheet date, the Company had the following

contingent liabilities:

1)

Development

The deposit of USD20,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB165,532,000) placed with Liaoning Trust and
Investment Corporation (“Liaoning Trust”) is irrecoverable
as Liaoning Trust's Financial Institution Legal Person
License (4 Ml # M 1 A #F "1 #%) and Financial Institution
Business License (4 il #% 1 & 3£ 3 W @) have been
withdrawn pending the liquidation process. The Company
has submitted the relevant evidence of debt in respect of its
deposit of USD20,000,000 to the liquidation team which
was confirmed by the team. As at 31 December 2002, the
Company has already received USD8,000,000 as a
settlement from Liaoning Trust and the remaining balance
is USD12,000,000 (equivalent to RMB99,233,000).
Following the review of the latest financial position of
Liaoning Trust by the directors and the lawyer of the
Company, the Company believes that Liaoning Trust has the
ability to repay the principal of the loan. Accordingly, no
provision for bad debts is made in respect of the remaining
balance.

Northeast Electrical Transmission and Transformation
Group Corporation Limited, the original controlling
shareholder of the Company, and China Everbright Bank
signed a loan agreement in respect of a loan for the sum of
RMB30,000,000 and the Company acted as a guarantor and
undertook joint guarantee liability. In December 2001,
China Everbright Bank instituted legal proceedings against
the Company for repayment of the principal of the loan
amounting to RMB26,400,000 and interest thereto. The
lawyer of the Company is of opinion that China Everbright
Bank knows the borrower of the loan is the Company’s
major shareholder and the guarantee contract between the
Company and China Everbright Bank should therefore be
invalid. In addition, the period of guarantee has expired.
The lawyer of the Company is of the opinion that it is
unlikely that the Company will have to pay compensation to
China Everbright Bank. Accordingly, no provision has been
made in this respect. The Company is still striving to release
the liability for such guarantee.

Company Limited
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DAAEERANTFARERE
EBEEREEAAGUTHRE
[BBEE)EPERTESD
T ENEE AR 2,000E T
ENERZERBALAEE
HTHREEMT - FEBRTER D
TER001F7TRHEBEER
DEREBFR EXEER
o 2001F 7H 2B &G R
ARERBEERNEERE
% 2 1 20004 8 A 298 £ (2000)
MBNFEREIRDE B
SETHERRF  REFHEZE
BEE  BERSHERTE
BRTHESR -BELARRE
SR B IE 0 2 F) R KE R
MRe DRAEEERDAEMA
AAREPERTERT DT
FHEENKSRE -
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FIEBERT  BREBT X
BT > PEIRT  FEEE
RT - BHETEREREQATR
BETERERERELT R
F T B A R ¥ 46,2598 7t B9 18
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

©)

(4)

The Company acts as the guarantor for the loan agreement
entered into between Shenyang Cable Company Limited
(“Shenyang Cable”), a subsidiary of NET, and the Bank of
China, Shenyang Branch in respect of a loan of
RMB20,000,000 under which the Company is jointly and
severally liable. In July 2001, the Bank of China, Shenyang
Branch instituted legal processings against Shenyang Cable
and the Company for repayment of the loan. On July 2,
2001, the Intermediate People’s Court in Shenyang ruled in
accordance with the relevant requirements of laws that
because Shenyang Cable had already declared a bankruptcy
procedure as evidenced by the Notice of (2000) Shen Jing
Chu Zi No. 422, the litigation initiated by Bank of China,
Shenyang Branch was overruled. As at the date of this
report, the Company has not received the writ. The directors
and the lawyer of the Company believe that the possibility
of being required to compensate the Bank of China,
Shenyang Branch is low.

The Company acts as the guarantor for Shenyang
Transformers Ltd. (“Shenyang”) under the loan agreements
signed with China Merchant Bank, China Construction
Bank, Bank of Communications, Bank of China, CITIC
Industrial Bank, Shenyang Trust and Investment Company
and Shenyang International Trust and Investment Company
in respect of loans for an aggregate amount of
RMBA462,590,000 and is jointly and severally liable. The
Company has signed an agreement with Shenyang National
Industrial Assets Management Company pursuant to which
Shenyang National Industrial Assets Management Company
will become the guarantor after completion of the transfer
of the equity interest in Shenyang. As at December 31, 2002,
the Company has transferred the obligation from guarantee
in respect of five loans raised by Shenyang from Bank of
China (RMB175.35 million) to Shenyang National
Industrial Assets. According to the understanding from the
directors and the lawyer of the Company, the transfer of the
remaining obligation from guarantee amounting to
RMB287.24 million isin progress.
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

ol.

52.

515}

Northeast

REFER

BEEESMERAL  RAXRESR
EHANRESE -

REARRHGSHPHIFRE

BIR

EERBERAREEAFARSR -

REEHER

oy

EBEREERN

2002F5H 29 » AT EHE B F
SEEFEARNRENEES
EXEZB(ERGR) 278§
EHREERAA~EAR 2=
R 87 1 40008 3= Tt B9 65%74
€ BN2,6008X T - RIECGE
RHE) 0 D EE 2 B 20026
5H30H #2002 118 21A @&
B EERE D TR RWE
B 75 X {42 51,8008 = xt M
800B =TT °

RECGERGR) - RE AR
ZHRABEBRE1L4008E T
REEANESATARE
148,115,279.707C » =5t A E

Electric

5l

52.

53.

Development

COMMITMENTS

The Company has no commitment requiring explanation as at the
balance sheet date.

NON-ADJUSTED POST BALANCE SHEET
EVENTS

No material non-adjusted post balance sheet events have to be
disclosed.

DEBT RESTRUCTURING

(1)

Repayment for Syndicate Loans

On May 29, 2002, the Company entered into a Repayment
Agreement with, the syndicate represented by CCIC Finance
Limited, pursuant to which the Company would repay 65%
of the principal amount of the loan of USD40,000,000, i.e.
USD26,000,000 by two instalments within six months from
the date of signing the agreement. In accordance with the
Repayment Agreement, the Company settled with
instalments amounting to USD18,000,000 and
USD8,000,000 on May 30, 2002 and November 21, 2002
respectively.

According to the Repayment Agreement, the syndicate had
forfeited repayment of USD14,000,000 of principal and
interest accrued totalling RMB148,115,279.70, which was
transferred to the capital surplus.

Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

53. DEBT RESTRUCTURING (continued)

@

Receipt of the settlement of the amount due from NET and
its subsidiaries:

The Company received repayment amounting to RMB
66,900,000 from NET and its subsidiaries (included in other
receivables) on August 1, 2002. Part of the settlement of a
sum of RMB52,000,000 from NET is compensated by 33%
of the shares of Shenyang Furukawa Cable Company
Limited (“Furukawa”). On July 20, 2002, the Ministry of
Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation, Shenyang
approved the transfer of the 33% shareholding of Furukawa
to the Company. In addition, the Company has signed the
Agreement on Share Transfer (J # #3 1 € ) with NET
on July 29, 2002, in which NET agreed to transfer its
remaining 9.5% shareholding of Furukawa to the Company
to as compensation for the due amount of RMB14,900,000.
This transfer has been approved by the relevant department
and the procedure for the transfer has been completed. The
addition of the long term equity investment amounting to
RMB75,239,722.48 is due to the transfer of shares from
debt. The difference in equity arising from the transfer is a
credit of RMB8,324,578.48. Since then, the Company now
holds 42.5% shares of Furukawa and has become one of the
major shareholders. (see Note 15 (3))
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

515}

Northeast

REBEEHETH (&7
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0MWR BB EHA GIEEE
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Electric

53. DEBT RESTRUCTURING (continued)

©)

Development

Receipt of settlement from the receivable from third party:

The Company instituted legal proceedings against a third
party company in respect of unsettled loans amounting to
RMB96,000,000, representing two loans worth
RMB46,000,000 and RMB50,000,000 respectively.
According to the Notice of (2002) Shen Jing Chu Zi No.
378 from the Intermediate People’s Court of Shenyang, the
third party company and its shareholder was required to
provide its six sets of 1220MW steam turbine generator and
four sets of 200MW steam turbine generator (valued at
RMB1,308,292,000 in total) to the Company as
compensation for unsettled loans of RMB90,760,000. The
Company has already made a provision in respect of the
loan amounting to RMB62,880,000 previously, and the book
value after provision is RMB27,880,000. As the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that these generator sets
will be sold in the near future for cash receipts, these
generator sets were recorded in inventories at book value
after provision (i.e.RMB27,880,000) as at December 31,
2002. (see Note 13)

Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

54. DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL ASSETS

ey

Disposal of Shenyang Transformers Ltd.

A Board of Directors’ meeting of the Company was held on
April 24, 2002 at which it was resolved to dispose of its
entire interest in Shenyang. The total registered capital of
RMB320,565,000 was owned by the Company and
Shenyang High-Voltage Switchgears Ltd. who contributed
RMB320,564,999 and RMB1 respectively. The purchaser
of Shenyang is Northeast Construction and Installation
Company and the consideration of RMB150,000,000 for the
disposal was determined with reference to the audited net
asset value of RMB112,386,469.94 as at December 31,
2001. The agreement was signed on April 24, 2002.

As Shenyang was disposed of and the consideration payable
by the acquirer is not dependent on the results of Shenyang
from January 1, 2002 to the date of disposal, neither the
operating result of Shenyang from January 1, 2002 to the
date of disposal nor the classification of the gain on disposal
of such equity interest will affect the net profit of the
Company for the year. Accordingly, the gain on disposal of
this subsidiary is calculated based on the consideration for
the disposal less the net asset value of Shenyang as at
December 31, 2001 and the loss of Shenyang from January
1, 2002 to the date of disposal. The net cash inflow from the
disposal is calculated based on the consideration for the
disposal |ess the cash balance of Shenyang at the beginning
of the year. The calculations are detailed as follows:
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
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54, EXEEHE (&) 54. DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL ASSETS (continued)
(1) SHEXE (&) (1) Disposal of Shenyang Transformers Ltd. (continued)
&#
Amount
AR
RMB
HELZWEER Consideration received from the disposal of Shenyang 150,000,000.00
B L2001 128 31BFEE  Less Net assets of Shenyang as at
December 31, 2001 112,386,469.94
ME2002F 15 1R ZHERR Loss incurred by Shenyang from January 1, 2002
=g to the date of disposal (9,882,150.53 )
HERBEZRERE Gain on disposal of Shenyang 47,495,680.59
HELZWEER Consideration received from the disposal of Shenyang 150,000,000.00
L E2001F 12A31HEEEE Less: Cash balance of Shenyang as at December 31, 2001 105,308,563.99
HEXNBELENRESER Net cash inflow from the disposal of Shenyang 44,691,436.01
HRLZEREE » KMEX Since Shenyang has been disposed, no figures of the assets
IR EEHERNEEME and liabilities of Shenyang on the date of disposal can be
BeE HELFERNEEN stated. The figures of the assets and liabilities as at the year
EEEHWNT : end of 2001 are as follows:
HH Item OB
Opening
AR
RMB
RBEE Current asset 1,136,814,308.05
RERE Long term investment 3,959,439.11
BEEE Fixed assets 550,506,743.18
BREE Intangible assets 95,088,427.98
EEAT Total assets 1,786,368,918.32
nEBE Current liabilities 1,530,782,880.55
RBEE Long term liabilities 136,380,487.85
=8 =) Total liabilities 1,667,163,368.40
LB RER Minority interest 6,819,079.98

Northeast Electric Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

54. DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL ASSETS (continued)
(1) Disposal of Shenyang Transformers Ltd. (continued)
The operating results of Shenyang from the beginning of the

year to the date of disposal and the results for 2001 are as
follows:

HE Item FRHRHY
(REEET) LFERFH

Accumulated for
the current period Accumulated for
(unaudited) the previous year
AR%T AR®T
RMB RMB
FEERHBA Revenues from principal operations 208,075,141.18  622,600,345.05
FEEKRE Profits from principal operations 61,775,947.73  76,202,416.92
R mezE Total losses (9,883,296.77) (360,640,943.00)
B Income tax (1,146.24)  (1,763,303.47)
EFE Net losses (9,882,150.53) (354,106,865.93)

REATHERLBEZHEAN
A BB IXBREEEKER
PRABERWHZ  REEE
RARBLETHER I #E
FEERERARATRRLE
FREBRNAIN  RESE
BHLBREREGIXEE
EERLENQT - ZRESET
EE R2002F 68 48 I T
X °

According to the agreement entered into by the Company,
Northeast Construction and Installation Company, Shenyang
National Company and Shenyang National Industrial Assets
Management Company, the transfer price of
RMB150,000,000 was paid by Shenyang National Industrial
Assets Management Company on behalf of Northeast
Construction and Installation Company. After completion
of the transfer, Shenyang National Industrial Assets
Management Company became the shareholder of
Shenyang. The formalitiesin respect of the transfer of equity
interest had been completed on June 4, 2002.

el
=
E;
24

FiR

S
a

NEE



NEE

& uh Wk WG

(%)

Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
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54. DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL ASSETS (continued)

)

Development

Disposal of Shenyang Hua Kang Restaurant &
Entertainment Ltd.

A Board of Directors’ meeting of the Company was held on
November 10, 2002 at which it was resolved to disposal of
the Company’s entire interest in Hua Kang. The total
registered capital of Hua Kang amounted to USD3,000,000
which was owned by the Company, Hong Kong Fengyun
Investment Ltd. and Fanxing Equipment Ltd. of America
who invested USD1,800,000 (60% of total shares),
USD900,000 (30%) and USD300,000 (10%) respectively.
The seller is the Company while the acquirer is Northeast
Construction and Installation Company with the transfer
price agreed at RMB20,000,000 with reference to the
audited net asset value of RMB13,142,743.52 as at June 30,
2002. The transfer agreement was signed on 10 November
2002 and all the procedures of transfer were completed on
December 19, 2002.

Company Limited



It

HEZEESMEGREREL
WREFRAEBAEDT :

7k WoE W (8)
Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

Net cash inflow and profit generated from the disposal of

Hua Kang are detailed as follows:

4]
Amount
AR
RMB
HEEBENERARE Consideration received from the disposal
of Hua Kang 20,000,000.00
B DEIRBEONFTEBERE Less: Company’s 60% interest on net asset
2002F 11A 30R F&EE of Hua Kang as at November 30, 2002 7,359,838.46
HEEEEERS KR Gain on the disposal of Hua Kang 12,640,161.54
i 1£ 20024 A 12H 31H WK 2 Consideration received from the disposal of
NWHEZERER Hua Kang up to December 31, 2002 18,000,000.00
B EEE2002F 11A30HE£EE Less: Cash balance of Hua Kang
as at November 30, 2002 1,032,933.73
HEZERELENREFER Net cash inflow from the disposal of Hua Kang  16,967,066.27
@ 5 R B i # B 4 g
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Notes to the Accounts (Continued)
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54, BEXEEHE (&) 54. DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL ASSETS (continued)
2 LEEE®E) (2) Disposal of Shenyang Hua Kang Restaurant &

Entertainment Ltd. (continued)

ERAEHERRELEERN The assets and liabilities of Hua Kang on the date of disposal
EENEESHENT : and the ending balance of 2001 are as follows:
HH Item HE&R )
Date of disposal Opening
AR® T AR®T
RMB RMB
RBEE Current assets 6,295,655.02 6,751,504.78
BEEE Fixed assets 4,773,408.28 5,077,630.02
BREE Intangible assets 4,545,422.13 5,590,159.71
EESRT Total assets 15,614,485.43  17,419,294.51
REAE Current liabilities 3,348,087.47 4,806,006.42
&8EET Total liabilities 3,348,087.47 4,806,006.42
EFEEHBSEHUNELER The operating result of Hua Kang from the beginning of the
o AR EFENKER RN year to the date of disposal and the operating result of the
T s previous year are as follows;
"E Item FRRGMH FERFEH

Accumulated for Accumulated for
the current period previous year

ARBT AR

RMB RMB

FEERHBA Revenues from principal operations 2,325,133.10 3,467,560.00
FEEKFE Profits from principal operations 2,083,731.61 2,729,423.60
AN Total losses (323,668.79)  (11,509,919.36)
FEH Income tax 23,221.34 (43,259.39)
EFE Net |osses (346,890.13)  (11,466,659.97)

Northeast Electric Development Company Limited



55. HtEXER

AAFBFAREGSBHEE
BREFED 7R 19985F B &
MEESHE  RLEG D
BREAERETATLRHEE
PRA(HELILT])  BHE
BNEEBIULLEHERE -
AEAECHABEILDINE
E -BEREEARZEQARE
B REHZE BEES LT
BEADEEN—JBL &
HEFMEERE - RFRF
REBEZHES D AN EMY
BEE ZEESRAAER
2003F 18 208 F LB H o

ARAREZERBRRRIELEEE LD
AIA2000F E L E FriE B 1B
e HeR/ERERERARAF
B BHLBREEEAHE
GEHMBREERAF o BERE
5 & #ER/E B AR ERIREE - I
NE REREIBEHMES
MERER BERELHFERAER
ETERESERR -

& ak Wk W (8

Notes to the Accounts (Continued)

95. OTHER MATERIAL EVENTS

@)

?

Shenyang High-Voltage Switchgears Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement with Mr. Cai Weihe
in 1998 with respect to the establishment of Beijing Sales
Company of Shenyang High-Voltage Switchgears Ltd.
(“Sales Company”) (8 & 4 4 #]), the profit and loss of
which will be solely yielded to or borne by Mr. Cai Weihe.
The Company had stated that the assets, liabilities and
relevant interests of Shenyang High-Voltage Switchgears
Ltd. shall be independent of and not connected with the
Company. In accordance with such agreement, any loss
incurred by the Company arising from the Sales Company
shall be borne by Mr. Cai Weihe. Accordingly, the financial
statements do not contain any financial data related to the
Sales Company. The Sales Company ceased its operations
on January 20, 2003.

The original shareholder of the Company, NET, transferred
the shareholding of Kingdom Hotel Shenyang to the
Company as compensation for a debt due in 2000 and the
name of Kingdom Hotel Shenyang was changed to Kingdom
Hotel Limited Shenyang thereafter. But the property license
and the land use right license in respect of the bowling alley,
office, restaurant and staff quarters have not yet been
transferred from the original Kingdom Hotel Shenyang.

NEE

56. WEHE 56. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

REEDETIRR S A 2003F 48 14E
KESSHEES -

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002
were approved by the Board of directors on April 14, 2003.
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